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Galley 7g—THE WORLD OF FLYING SAUCERS

ficers and crewmen who examined it allegedly agreed that it showed
the same Saturn-like UFO that had flown over the island. After the
return to Rio he made prints and enlargements and turmed them
over, together with the negative, to the Brazilian Navy.

The question of authenticity arose immediately. Called down to
Intelligence headquarters for an interview, Barauna underwent a
four-hour interrogation concerning the pictures [19]. During the
questioning he was asked, “If you were going to make a flying saucer
appear on a negative, how would you proceed?” He replied, as he
later told a reporter, “Comandante, I am an able photographer,
specialized in trick photography, but I could not produce one that
would withstand close and accurate examination.” [20]

In spite of this modest disclaimer, some of the photographic evi-
dence clearly suggested fraud, and a strong difference of opinion
developed among government officials. Some accepted the pictures
as a genuine record of a flying saucer; others pronounced them
fakes. For several weeks the incident was kept secret, but when
eventually someone took the prints to the President of Brazil, further
concealment became impossible. Yielding to the persuasion of cer-
tain military advisers and newsmen, and against the advice of the
Naval Ministry, he released the pictures to the press.

The Brazilian Naval Ministri

The photographs were published on February 21, five weeks after
they were taken. Since the President had apparently accepted them
at face value, the Naval Ministry was obviously in a difficult posi-
tion; through an unofficial spokesman it issued a statement notable
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“On the morning of January 16, 1938, over the island of Trin-
dade, “he crew of the school ship Almirante Sal = ~ha sighted an
unide __.ded aerial object for a few seconds. A wwvilian who was
aboard the ship took some pictures of the object. The Navy has no
connection with the case, and its only connection with the occur-
rence was the fact that the photographer was aboard the school
ship, and came back with the ship to Rio.” [20]

On the same day another Navy spokesman released a similar un-
official statement to O Globo:

“The news about a flying saucer sighted over the Island of Trin-
dade was received here with utmost reserve. There will be an in-
vestigation to verify the authenticity of the sightings and photos.
No officer or sailor from the N.E. Almirante Saldanha witnessed the
event.,” [20]

Immediately an international furor broke out. Were these pictures
indeed proof of extraterrestrial spaceships, or were they a hoax,
with the Brazilian President and the Brazilian Navy as victims?
Who were the witnesses, and exactly what did they report? In the
United States, high officials asked for copies of the pictures. An
editor of Look magazine asked Dr. Menzel to fly to Brazil to evalu-
ate the evidence, but later canceled the plan when the Rio office
advised that the photographs were generally considered fraudulent.
Public excitement in Brazil became so great that on February 23
the Naval Ministry released an official statement, distinguished by
its air of caution, which concluded:

“Clearly this Ministry will not be able to make any pronounce-
ment concerning the reality of the object seen because the photo-
graphs do not constitute suflicient proof for this purpose.” [20]

The day after the pictures were published, the Almirante Sal-
danha which had been lying outside the harbor at Rio, received
orders to sail. Not until February 24, when the ship docked at
Santos, did newsmen have a chance to interview the officers and
crewmen who allegedly had observed the Trindade saucer and
could support Barauna’s story. None of them, it turned out, had
actually seen the object.

The assistant Naval Attaché of the United States, who was then
in Santos in connection with the visit of the U. S. Coast Guard
cutter Westwind, visited the Brazilian ship to collect information
about the Trindade saucer, but with little success. The commanding
officer stated that he had not seen the alleged UIF'O; he had seen
the pictures but refused to express an opinion on their authenticity;
he stated that his secretary might have seen the UT'O but the secre-
tary, when questioned, preferred not to discuss the matter. The
executive officer said that he had not been on deck at the time of
the sighting, but that other persons might have seen the object.

During the next week arguments for and against the authenticity
- of the photographs filled the Brazilian papers, and O Globo pub-
lished deliberately faked views of a “flying saucer”—a china plate
tossed into the air. A federal deputy in an official note to the Naval
Ministry deplored their amazing failure to procure sworn statements
from the officers and crewmen who were reported to have witnessed
the UFO.

In spite of the widespread and increasing skepticism, the weekly
magazine O Cruzeiro used the Trindade pictures for its lead story
in the issue of March 8. “Once bitten, twice shy” apparently did not
apply to its editors, who seemed instead to adopt the principle, “In
for a penny, in for a pound.” The photographs, they remarked
editorially, not only proved the existence of flying saucers, they also
established the authenticity of the Ilha dos Amores pictures pub-
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The Trindade Island Saucer

The most famous of all purported photographs of @ UFO, the
Trindade Island saucer, also came from Brazil. First published in
Brazilian newspapers on February 21, 1958, the pictures showed
dark mountain crags looming against an overcast sky. Above one
peak appeared a startling image (much like the O Cruzeiro saucer
of 1952) resembling the planet Saturm—a flattened sphere banded
round the middle by a dark line that extended like a platform be-
yond the curved sides. According to the accompanying news stories,
the UFO had flown over the island of Trindade and had been ob-
served by the officers and crew of a ship of the Brazilian Navy. The
pictures, taken by a photographer on board, had been examined
and supposedly pronounced genuine by navy experts before being
released to the press. Since a responsible military organization and
a major world government thus seemed to accept the photographs
as proof that flying saucers actually existed, the incident raised a
storm of official inquiry both in Brazil and abroad. Then, within a
few weeks, the storm abruptly subsided. Although no explanation
was given, the object in the pictures was obviously considered no
threat to our planet’s security.

Although saucer enthusiasts regard these pictures as genuine evi-
dence for the reality of UFOs, careful study of the facts strongly
suggests that this case, which rocked the Brazilian Government and
created a short-lived but world-wide saucer scare, was merely an
unusually skillful hoax.

At first glance, the circumstances of the sighting seemed to be
entirely clear and straightforward [18]. Trindade is a barren, moun-
tainous island of about six square miles, some Goo miles from the
coast of Brazil. Abandoned after the end of the Second World War,
the island remained deserted except by sea gulls until October 1957,
when the Brazilian Navy established an oceanographic post and a
meteorological station there to carry out its research for the Inter-
national Geophysical Year (IGY). To facilitate the oceanographic
studies, the Navy also converted a training ship, the Almirante
Saldanha, into a floating laboratory equipped with scientific appa-
ratus and photographic darkroom. With a crew of about 300, the
ship routinely traveled between Rio de Janeiro and Trindade Island
on its duties for the IGY.

A major function of the meteorological station was the launching
and tracking of weather balloons; they were painted red, inflated
with hydrogen, and carried radio transmitters. Launched each morn-
ing, they were tracked by radio and optical devices to show the
. movements of the winds in the upper atmosphere. At a certain
point (wherr the balloon burst, or at a prearranged signal) the bal-
loon released a bag of scientific instruments which, attached to a
parachute, floated to the ground to be retrieved. '

The Trindade station began operation in November 1957. Almost
immediately, UFOs were reported over the island. (Brazil had not
been immune to the flying-saucer epidemic that had begun in Texas
early that month [see Chapter 1x], and sentries at Itaipu Fort,
near Santos, on November 4 had reported a UFO that knocked out
the lights and electric plant.) With a weather balloon going up
daily, parachutes floating down at odd times, and sea gulls cruising
over the island, the advent of other “saucers” was inevitable. During
November and December several UFOs were reported by work= .
men, none of whom were trained observers. Although neither Cap-
tain Bacellar, the commanding officer at the station, nor his officers:
saw any unidentified objects, he radioed Rio to report the incidents
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schedule at Trindade, it had on board several civilian guests who
were to collaborate in various aspects of the research. Among them
was Almir  irauna, a professional photographer. After  -eral days
at the island, the ship prepared to leave for the return trip to Rio
on January 16. Shortly after noon Barauna was on deck. with his;
camera, waiting to film the departure. The sky was thinly overcast,
the sea was rough, and waves dashing against the ship and the
rocky shore created a noisy background.

According to the news accounts printed several weeks later, Gap-
tain Viegas, of the Brazilian Air Force, suddenly shouted “Olha o
disco! [Flying saucer!]” Hearing the shout, Barauna peered at the
sky and saw a luminous oval object moving swiftly toward the is-
land. Officers and crewmen on deck also observed the UFO, he
said, and interfered with his aim as they ran about excitedly. Never-
theless he managed to take six shots of the UFO as it approached
the island, disappeared behind a mountain peak, reversed direction
and reappeared at a lower altitude, retraced its course, and van-
islied with incredible speed against the horizon. The unknown had
arrived and departed in a period of about twenty seconds.

According to the news stories, the photographer had retired to the
ship’s darkroom under the supervision of an officer to develop the
negative, and found that four of the six exposures showed the mys-
terious object. He was not able to make prints, he said, because
the darkroom supplies unfortunately did not include any photo-
graphic paper. However, he did exhibit the negative and the of--

lished several years earlier. As though to emphasize this point, the
magazine assigned the Trindade story and the interviews with wit-
nesses to the same staff reporter who had described the Ilha dos
Amores saucer in 1932. The Naval Ministry refrained from further
comment and, since the military authorities showed no alarm about
the possibility of extraterrestrial patrols, public interest in the pic-

‘tures quickly died.

The report sent home by the U. S. Naval attaché included the
comment:

“There appear to be only two explanations for this peculiar in=
cident, and the peculiar handiing of it by the Brazilian Govern-
ment: (a) Some overwhelming power has told the Brazilian Navy
not to verify this incident officially (which they should easily be
able to do, if it actually occurred) or to deny it (which they should
easily be able to do if it is a fake). I personally do not believe that
anyone has told the Brazilian Navy to keep quiet about it because
there has been no hint of such suppression in either Brazilian or
United States circles. I also doubt that their control of the individual
officers and men would be good enough to hold the line in any
event. (b) The whole thing is a fake publicity stunt. . . . This
seems.more likely. . . .7 [21]
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The Icarai Submarine Hunting Club I

The accounts originally printed in the Brazilian papers and in
O Cruzeiro contain a number of significant details that have been
glossed over or ignored by UFO enthusiasts, both in Brazil [18] and
in the United States [22], who accept the Trindade saucer at face
value. A study of the available news stories, facts gathered by In-
telligence officers, and of the photographs themselves leads inescap-
ably to the conclusion that the Trindade Island sighting was a hoax.

Almiro Barauna was a free-lance photographer. A professional of
unusual skill, he had long been interested in flying saucers and,
some time before the Trindade incident, he had published a pur-
posely humorous magazine article entitled “A Flying Saucer Hunted
Me at Home” and illustrated by admittedly faked photographs. He
had also published trick photographs of “treasure chests” lying on
the ocean bottom. In addition, Barauna specialized in underwater
photography and was a member of the Icarai Submarine Hunting
Club, a group interested in skin diving and the study of life on the
ocean floor.

When the Almirante Saldanha left Rio for its historic January visit
to Trindade Island, the ship had on board, as guests of the Navy,
five members of the Icarai Club. Among the five, in addition to
Barauna, were Amilar Vieira Filho, captain of the group, and José
Teobaldo Viegas, a retired captain in the Brazilian Air Force [23].
On January 16 when the ship was getting ready to leave Trindade,
these three friends were on deck, Barauna with his loaded Rolleiflex
camera, the other two standing some distance away. Suddenly
Vieira remarked on “a big sea gull” in the sky. Looking up, Teo-
baldo immediately shouted, “Flying saucer!” and Barauna snapped
his pictures.

No other eyewitnesses have been found, even though the deck
was crowded with sailors. The ship’s dentist has been listed as a
witness (in one document he appears as two persons, under two
different versions of his name) but no newspaper yet examined
mentions his story. Captain Bacellar, returning from his post as com-
mander of the Trindade station, has also been listed as a witness but,
according to his statement, he was not on deck when the incident
occurred.

Vieira, the first man to sight the object, had called it “a big sea
gull.” When interviewed five weeks later, in the midst of the saucer
excitement, he was no longer certain just what he had seen:

“First, I want to make it very clear that I don’t know if what I
saw was really the so-called ‘flying saucer” What I saw, in fact,
“was an object of gray color and oval in shape when first sighted,
which passed over the island and then—emitting a fluorescent light
it didn’t possess before—went away towards the horizon and was



just a few seconds, in no more than twenty seconds, and tor this
reaso” U cannot give you more details about the curious craft. It
looke._.ike an object with polished surface anc _ aiform color. I
am sure it was not a balloon, an airplane, or a sea gull.” This de-
scription does not mention the dark band around the object or the
“Saturn-like” appearance; indeed, it sounds remarkably like a de-
scription of a sea gull!

When asked whether the object he saw was the same as that on
Barauna’s film, he replied, “As 1 said before, the thing was too rapid.
It was almost impossible for the human vision to fix any detail of
the object. Mr. Barauna, however, was operating with a camera of
modern type which was able to register these details. Generally
speaking, the shape of the object sighted was the same seen on the
negatives. . . .” [24]

The Trindade Photographs

Accounts of the Trindade affair often remark that the photographs
must be genuine because no opportunity for fraud occurred. On the
contrary, there were ample and repeated opportunities. Sincé
Barauna was not under observation when he loaded his camera, he
could easily have inserted a “prepared” film, with no one the wiser.
With the type of camera used, the operation would have been sim-
ple. He was again free from observation when he developed the
negatives. Captain Bacellar escorted him to the door of the dark-
room but remained outside, on guard at the door. The only person
to accompany Barauna inside (to help by holding a flashlight) was
his friend Viegas—the same man who had cried “Flying saucer!”

When Barauna emerged with the dripping film, Bacellar exam-
ined it but what he expected to find is a question, since he had not
observed the UFO. The witnesses allegedly agreed, however, that
the negatives showed the object they had seen in the sky—an amaz-
ing feat when we remember that the Rolleiflex film frame is small;
only about 2.25 inches square.

In the print of Frame 3 shown in O Cruzeiro, the UFO measures
slightly more than ¥ inch long and less than ¥ inch thick. Assuming
an enlargement factor of a little more than three, we find that the
UFO on the negative would have appeared merely as a pale blur
about 1,4 of an inch in length and no thicker than a pencil line.
Miraculous eyesight would have been required to distinguish a
“Saturn-like” or any other shape.

The Navy's officers on board showed astonishingly little interest
in the film and did nothing to prevent the possibility of fraud. All
during the homeward trip the photographer had both the camera
and the negative in his own possession. When the ship stopped at
Santos, he and his fellow club members were allowed to debark
(with camera and negative), and they completed the journey to
Rio by bus. The ship had been anchored at Rio for two days before
Captain Bacellar, of the Trindade station, finally called on Barauna
and asked to see the prints so that he could show them to the Navy.
Thus the photographer had been free of supervision for days. In
that time he could have produced pictures of little men from Mars,
if he had wanted to.

The pictures themselves raise many questions. The three witnesses
had emphasized the brilliance of the UFO, yet the prints show
merely a gray shape with no suggestion of luminosity. Barauna had
used a Rolleiflex camera, 2.8 Model E, {/8 lens, set at 125. Finding
that he had overexposed the film, he said, he had treated the nega-
tive with silver salts after development in order to increase the
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The prints used in O Cruzeiro have obviously been cropned since,
unlike the i ‘rames, they are not square. Frame 1 shov. e UFO
above the sea, some distance from the island; Frame 2 shows the
UFO above rocky crags, at the right of a peak. Frame 3 shows it
at the right of the peak but at lower altitude, Frames 4 and 5, not
reproduced, did not show the object, and in Frame 6 the UFO is a
mere speck low on the horizon.

Frame 3, the only one showing the “Saturn-like” shape, deserves
special attention. Tn the published print the mountains in the fore-
ground are quite clear, while the UFO is little more than a dark
line with an indistinct beginning and end, with a faint suggestion
of rounding at top and bottom; without the dark line the curves
would scarcely be visible, so completely does the object merge into
the background of overcast sky. The picture widely distributed by
news agencies is a further enlargement of the section containing the
UFO. In the enlarged section, the foreground rocks are a mere
black blur, but the UFO has gained greatly in clarity. The central
band is darker, particularly at the left, and the outlines of the object
are no longer vague.

The Navy's study of the negatives revealed several dubious fea-
tures. The details of the land in the foreground were very sharp but
the UFO disk was hazy, showed little contrast, and was essentially
without shadows. The object in Frame 2 seemed to have been in-
verted, as compared with Frames 1 and 3. From the reported
high velocity of the saucer and the fast shutter speed, some lateral
haziness might have been expected, but no such blurring appeared.

Exactly when and how the fraudulent images were produced—if
they were fraudulent—cannot be known. Experienced photographers
can easily think of a dozen possible devices. The probability that
they were faked is overwhelming and, but for the embarrassing
fact that the Brazilian President had seemed to sponsor them pub-
licly, the Naval Ministry would undoubtedly have exposed the en-
tire hoax.

In summary, the facts are these: The man who made the Trindade
pictures had no connection with the Brazilian Navy; he was a pro-
fessional photographer noted particularly as an expert at trick pho-
tography. No officer or crewman of the Brazilian Navy reported
seeing the UFO; in addition to the photographer, only two persons
are on record as actual eyewitnesses; both of them were personal
friends of the photographer; neither of them had any connection
with the Brazilian Navy. The photographer had ample time and
many opportunities to fake the pictures. A Rolleiflex camera can eas-
ily be used for double exposures. A series of pictures of a model sau-
cer against a dark background could be rerolled and exposed a
second time to provide the background, an old and well-known pho-
tographic trick. The pictures themselves show internal inconsisten-
cies. The Brazilian Naval Ministry never accepted the pictures as
authentic records of a flying saucer. ,

The final paragraph from a United States Intelligence report
provides perhaps the most appropriate comment on the affair:

“It is the reporting officer’s private opinion that a flying saucer
sighting would be unlikely at the very barren island of Trindade,
since everyone know that Martians are extremely comfort-loving
creatures.”






S

.

e &

1 e~

L T J ’"\ﬂ
W i I\

The A. P. R. O. Bulletin is the official copyrighted publication of the Aerial Phenomena Research Organization (A. P. R. ©.), 1712 Van Count, Alamogordo, New Mexico, and is
issued every other month to members only. The Aerial Phenomens Research Organization is a non-profil group dedicated to the eventual solution of the mystery of the
unidentified objects which have been present in the skies for hundreds of years. Inquiries regarding membership may be made to the above address.

ALAMOGORDO, NEW MEXICO — MARCH, 1960

85}

L L

al v

NICAP SCORES

NICAP made national headlines on 27
Feb. with its disclosure of an Air Force
Inspector General’s Brief issued to all
Commands on 24 Dec. 1959. The brief
reads as follows:

“Unidentified flying objeets — some-
times treated lightly by the press and
referred to as flying saucers—must be
rapidly and accurately identified as seri-
ous USAF business in the ZI. As AFR
200-2 points out the Air Force con-
cern with these sightings is threefold:
First of all, is the object a threat to
the defense of the U. S.? Secondly, does
it contribute to technical and scientific
knowledge? And then there's the inher-
ent USAT responsibility to explain to
the American people through public in-
formation media what is going on in
their skies.

“The phenomena or actual objects
comprising the UFOs will tend to in-
crease, with the public more aware of
goings-on in space but still inclined to
some apprehension. Technical and de-
fense considerations will continue to ex-
ist in this area.

“Published about three months ago,
AFR 200-2 oullines necessary orderly
qualified reporting as well as public-
information procedures. This is where
the base should stand today, with prac-
lices judged at least satisfactory by the
commander and inspector.

“—Responsibility for handling UFO’s
should rest with either Intelligence, Op-
erations, or the Provost Marshal or the
Information officer—in that order of pref-
erence, dictated by the limits of the base
organization.

“—A specific officer should be desig-
nated as responsible;

“_He should have experience in in-
vestigative techniques and also, if possi-
ble, scientific or technical background;

“_He should have the authority to
obtain the assistance of specialists on
the base;

“__He should be equipped with binocu-
lars, camera, geiger counter, magnify-
ing glass, and have a source for con-
tainers in which to store samples.

“What is required is that every sight-
ing be investigated and reported to the
Air Technical Intelligence Center at
Wright-Patterson AFB and that explana-
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Avuthorities Grab Photos;
Hopf Urges Vigilance
On Part of Members

Two instances in which private indi-
viduals succeeded in obtaining photo-
graphs of UAOs within the last few weeks
have come to the attention of the APRO
staff.

On the fourth of March, Charles Mor-
ris, 31, an airplane instructor, obtained
19 feet of moving picture film of a for-
mation of three disc-shaped objects over
Dubuque, Iowa. Morris estimated their
altitude as 20,000 feet, their speed at
about 200 miles per hour. The objects
were saucer-shaped, silvery in color.
Morris gave the film to the Federal gov-
ernment “‘for processing and study,” the
UPI report stated.

At Grand Blane, Michigan, Joe Perry,
a pizza restaurant owner and amateur
astronomer, shot a few pictures of the
full moon in February. When the color
pictures were developed, one showed,
clearly silhouetted against the lunar disc,
a saucer-like object, radiating a green
tail, and with a dome. Mr. Perry showed
them around his restaurant, to customers
and friends, and one individual said, “It's
a flying saucer.” Before long, two FBI
agents dropped in, looked at the pic-
tures, were noncommital when looking
al them, and in Perry’s words, ‘“They
didn’t seem to be interested until I show-
cd this particular one, and then both of
them jumped up.” The agents took the
photo showing the saucer, and several
others. Perry said he hoped he has been
of some service to the government, “but
I hope I get that picture back,” he said.

John Hopf, APRO’'s photo analyst, said
in a recent letter to the staff: “This
film will never be seen again—he might
just as well have burned it up!”

The rest of the staff joins Hopf in
wrging members to keep a sharp eye
out for any picture of a UAO. Inform
the photographer that APRO will pay
for the privilege of analyzing the film,
and will guarantee that the original nega-
tives will be returned, if requested.

MEMBERS —

Please Forward Address Changes!

On September 14, 1957, Mr. Ibrahim
Sued, a social columnist for the Rio de
Janeiro daily newspaper, “O Globo,”
included in his column the text of a
letter he had received from a reader.
Quote:

“Dear Mr. Ibrahim Sued. As a faithful
reader of your column, and an admirer
of yours, I wish to give you something
of the highest interest to a newspaper-
man, concerning the flying saucers. If
you believe they are real, of course. I
also didn’t believe anything said or pub-
lished about them. But just a few days
ago I had to change my mind. I was
fishing together with some friends al a
place near the town of Ubatuba, Sao
Paulo, when I saw a flying disk. It
approached the beach at unbelievable

speed, an accident seeming imminent—

in other words, a crash into the seca.
At the last moment, however, when il
was about to strike the water, it made
a sharp turn upwards and climbed up
rapidly in a fantastic mancuver. We fol-
lowed the spectacle with our ecyes,
startled, when we saw the disk explode
in flames. It disintegrated into thousands
of fiery fragments, which fell sparkling
with magnificent brightness. They looked
like fireworks, in spite of the time of the
accident—at noon. Most of these frag-
ments, almost all, fell into the sea. But a
number of small pieces fell close to the
beach and we picked up a large amount
of this material—which was as light as
paper. I enclose herewith a small sample
of it. I don't know any one that could be
trusted to whom I might send it for
analysis. I never read about a flying
saucer having been found, or about frag-
ments or parts of a saucer that had been
picked up; unless it had been done by
military authorities and the whole thing
kept as a top-secret subject. I am cer-
tain that the matter will be of great
interest to the brilliant columnist and I
am sending two copies of this letter—
to the newspaper and to your home.”
Unquote. The signature was not legible.

Mr. Sued had never written about the
UAOs before. Dr. Olavo T. TFontes,
APRO’s Brazilian representalive, read
the letter in the column and decided to
call Mr. Sued and attempt to at least
view the particles. Four hours after a
telephone conversation with the column-
ist, Dr. Fontes visited Mr. Sued at his

{Sun Dharerrn K rividravian  narmn )
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SECOND ALASKA SIGHTING
IN THREE 'WEEKS

On the 14th of February a ‘“flame-
belching’’ object, tubular in shape, hur-
tled through Alaskan skies over Nome.
The silvery object was sighted later at
Unalakleet and St. Michael about 150
miles across Norton Sound from Nome.

This sighting, with more than the usual
amount of physical description of the
object, went out on the press wires. On
the 16th of February, a spokesman for
the North American Air Defense Com-
mand, Colorado Springs, Colo., confirmed
that ““unidentified flying OBJECTS" were
seen over Alaska early on the 15th.
Although other wire stories revealed no
great amount of information, it seems
likely that at least one object was seen
on Sunday, the 14th, which would be the
object which triggered the initial story,
and one or more early the next morning
on the 15th.

The NORAD spokesman said that Ent
AFB at Colorado Springs received a re-
port at 3 a.m. on the 15th, that two
unidentified objects were moving in op-
posite directions across Alaska. Also
revealed by NORAD was the fact that
the object which was sighted at Unalak-
leet was rapidly moving norfhwest at a
speed sufficient to produce contrails, The
object reportedly produced a flash which

was assumed to have been an explosion.
Of added interest is the fact that Pete
Walsh, a Wien Alaska Airlines employee
at Nome, observed the object and said
it appeared to be a manned aircraft
traveling at tremendous speed about
2,000 to 3,000 feet above the earth, and
was monitored by two radar stations
near Nome. Although monitored by
radar, no estimates of speed were given
by officials. We cannot overlook the pos-
sibility that this object or these objects
may be Soviet aircraft, but if they are,
it is difficult to explain the close resem-
blance between these objects and the
object observed at Willoughby, Ohio, on
Thursday, 10 December, Sece page 3,
column 2 of The Bulletin for January
1960.

On the 6th of March, Mr. Walsh again
sighted an unidentified objeet in the
Nome area. In a telegram to Governor
William A. Egan, Walsh said that a
bright flash in the sky was sighted at
8:51 p.m., followed by an explosion.

After the flash, the bright object was

seen ‘‘drifting” to earth from the east,
Walsh told the governor. The Alaska Air
Command forwarded the report to NO-
RAD at Colorado Springs, Colo., and on
the 8th a NORAD spokesman said the
report had been received but routed to
USAF headquarters and the Secretary
of the Air in Washington, D. C. “This is
more in the nature of an intelligence
item than an operations problem,” the
spokesman said.

The Associated Press report of the
latest incident also noted that the object
sighted in February was later listed as
a white hot meteor. Who listed it as
such, or how they arrived at that con-
clusion, was not announced, but the fact
that at least one of the objects sighted
in February was flying at low speed
was not explained. It could not have
been a meteor, if the description of the
speed is accurate. Also, the Ohio object
which strongly resembles the object ob-
served in Alaska, was seen to ascend at
great speed, disappearing into the sky.

RAAF Statement on
Gill Sightings

Representative Peter Norris of Aus-
tralia has forwarded a copy of a letter
from Squadron Leader F. A. Lang, in
answer to his letter of 25 January 1960,
requesting information to the RAAF's
conclusions about the Gill sightings (AP-
RO Bulletin, Page 1, November 1959
issue). The following is the text of Lang’s
letter of 22 February: “Dear Sir, Thank
you for your letter of the 25th January
1960. An officer of this Directorate has
investigated Reverend W, Gill's report
of U.F.0. aclivities in the Boianal area
of New Guinea, and copies of his find-
ings have been submitted to proper au-
thorities. As mentioned in our 114/1/201
(22) dated 14th February, 1957, such

reports are not releasable to the public.
However, although it is not possible to
reach any positive conclusions, we do
not believe that the phenomena observed
by the Reverend Gill and his party were
manned space vehicles. An analysis of
bearings and angles above the horizon
does suggest that at least three of the
lights were planets, e.g., Jupiter, Saturn
and Mars. Light refraction, the chang-
ing position of the planets relative to
the observers and the unsettled tropical
weather could give the impression of
size and rapid movements. (Signed),
Yours Faithfully, F, 8. Lang.” (Read
again the report of Mr. Norris and Rev-
erend Gill and see if you can stretch
your imagination to the point where
Mars, Saturn and Jupiter will fly pell
mell across the sky at great speeds,
and with men standing on them and wav-
ing, yet! There's something wrong with
the astronomy textbooks! . . . the Editor)

Agencies in Disagreement
On Mystery Lighis

A press release by UPI, datelined
March 8, revcaled that the Air Force
was investigating reports of a mysteri-
ous stream of lights that flashed across
eastern U. S. on the Tth of March. Aec-
cording to the U. S, Defense Department,
the lights were seen as far north as
Lake Erie and as far south as Key West,
Florida.

Air Force officials in Washington said
the lights were believed to have been
caused by a meteor. Missilemen at Cape
Canaveral, however, said the lights “‘def-
initely looked” like a satellife as it fell
back to earth and burned in the atmos-
phere.

The National Space Agency in Wash-
ington confirmed the fact that Lunik III,
the huge Soviet rocket which put the
picture-taking satellite around the moon,
was expected to fall into the ecarth’s
atmosphere in March.

But . . . officials at the Smithsonian
astrophysical -laboratory at Cambridge,
Massachusetis, which keeps track of sat-
cllites once they are launched, said that
the lights, which were reported by airline
pilots, Air Force pilots, state police and
control towers, had not been explained
by them—they simply couldn’t explain
them away.

Observed through binoculars, the ob-
jects appeared to be fast-moving balis of
molten substance, perhaps metal, which
were falling apart, and which spread out
as they proceeded into the southeast.
They were observed at Cape Canaveral
at 8:10 p.m., 10 minutes after they were
spotted over North Carolina. The display
at Canaveral lasted for three minutes,
before disappearing into the blackness
of the night. The three minute observa-
tion takes the objects out of the category
of meteors, and since Smithsonian could

(See Agencies, page 4)
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home. There, on a table, was the sample
sent by the unknown correspondent,

The particles were dull grey, solid and
appeared to be metallic. They were rough
and irregular, with scattered whitish
areas on the surface produced by the
deposit of a thin layer of a powdered
substance which could easily be removed
by the application of a fingernail.

Dr. Fontes picked up one of the frag-
ments. Sued watched him, told him that
at first sight he might think the stuff
was lead, as it had that appearance,
but that it couldn’'t be, because of its
weight. Fontes noted that the stuff was
lighter than aluminum—almost as light
as paper.

Dr. Fontes then told Sued that he had
friends in scientific work whom he would
like to examine the material and Sued
agreed, saying he wasn't interested in
the subject of UAO, but that he would
like to know the results.

Before beginning the analysis proce-
dure, Dr. Fontes weighed the possibility
that the stuff could have been submitted
by a crackpot or publicity hound. He
deduced that if either premise were true,
the man had used pretty poor judgement
in submitting the material to Sued, who
had never exhibited any interest in UAOs,
and who was a society columnist. There-
fore, the man must have been sincere
and had sent the stuff to the only man
in the public eye that he could think of.

In his fully documented report, Fontes
stated that ordinarily he would have sent
someone to Ubatuba to more thoroughly
investigate the incident, but inasmuch as
he had the stuff in his hands, he decided
to conducl a scientific analysis.

For the analysis, which he knew would
have to be meticulously carried out, Dr.
Fontes submitted a part of the sample
to the Mineral Production Laboratory, a
division of the National Department of
Mineral Production—a Brazilian govern-
ment lab. Fontes was introduced to Dr.
Pfeigell, the chief chemist, by a friend.
Pfeigell was at the time engaged in spe-
cial work with plastics, turned it over to
Dr. David Goldscheim, one of his assis-
tants who, after studying the material,
said they could be the fragments of a
meteorite. Dr. Pfeigell didn’t agree, be-
cause of the light weight of the substance,
and personally conducted a test using
phosphomolydic acid to determine whe-
ther the substance was metal. It was.
He then decided on a spectrographic an-
alysis.

The official analysis of the substance
was made by chief chemist of the Spectro-
graphic Section of the Mineral Production
Laboratory, Dr. Luisa Maria A, Barbosa.
Her report reads as follows: “Bulletin

No. 15 001,” dated September 24, 1957,
“‘Spectrographic analysis of unknown ma-
terial. Protocol: 571/57. Origin: Ubatuba,
Sao Paulo. Sender: Dr. Olavo Fontes.
The sample received included two frag-
ments of metallic appearance, grey color,
low density, and weighing, each one,
approximately 0.6 gr. Report of the an-
alysis of one of the fragments: The
spectrographie analysis showed the pres-
ence of magnesium (Mg) of a high degree
of purity and absence of any other me-
tallic element.” Unquote. Signed, Luisa
Maria A. Barbosa, Chemist-Technologist
SN

The analysis was made with a large
Hilger Spectrograph. Fontes, expecling
a more detailed report, questioned Dr.
Barbosa: Fontes: “Your analysis showed
the presence of magnesium of a high
degree of purity, and absence of any
other metallic element. Right?” Barbosa:
“Yes. I found all common and uncom-
mon spectrum lines of the element mag-
nesium. There was no other metallic
clement in the sample, not cven the so-
called ‘trace elements’ usually detected
in the metallic samples.”

In order to overcome any lack of basic
data, and to obtain a better evaluation
of the pattern found, Dr. Fontes decided
to request a second spectrographic an-
alysis of the material, which was made
on 24 October, 1957, utilizing the same
Spectrograph.

Elson Teixeira, a former chemist at
the Laboratory who had worked there
for 15 years, did the second analysis.
He planned also a quantitative spectro-
graphic analysis, to determine concen-
tration of any impurity, but the unex-
pected absence of impurities of any kind
made a second analysis unnecessary.

A third spectrographic analysis of the
material has been done. The Brazilian
Army, after hearing about the case, dis-
patched Major Roberto Caminha to talk
to Dr. Fontes, who turned over a sample
of the material to the Army on the 4th
of November. Dr. Fontes was not in-
formed of the results of the test.

A small sample of the material was
sent to the Laboratory of Crystallography
at the Geology and Mineralogy Division
of the National Department of Mineral
Production, by Dr. Fontes. Dr. Elysiaro
Tavora Filho, a well-known scientist,
famous in Brazil for his pioneer works
in Crystallography since 1949, supervised
the X-Ray diffraction analysis, Examina-
tion of the material by X-Ray diffraction
showed that the substance was mag-
nesium, apparently absolutely pure. Pro-
fessor Tavora sent one of his assistants,
Dr. Augusto Batista, to the Mineral Pro-
duction laboratory to request a careful
re-examination of the spectrographic
plate.

Tavora then decided to make a com-
plete study of the powder diffraction

pattern of the material by the Powder
method, using a powder camera of the
Debye-Scherrer-Hull type. The analysis
revealed that the substance was pure
magnesium, and the only “impuritics’
was magnesium nydroxide (Mg (OH)2).
It was not, evidently, in the original
metal, appearing as an effecl of the
explosion and fall of the burning mag-
nesium fragments through the atmos-
phere and into the sea.

A Geiger counter and an Atomie Scaler
were used to determine whether the frag-
ments registered any extraordinary
amount of radiation. No abnormal amount
was found.

This, then, concluded the tests which
Dr. Fontes obtained on the sample of
metal.

The most pure magnesium refined is
99.99,, and such complex and time-
consuming operations are required that
this final product, although still exhibit-
ing some impurities, is more costly than
gold. It cannot be produced for industrial
application, and is used for special uses,
such as to be employed as a ‘“‘standard”
of purity, or for research purposes in
the understanding of the fundamental
properties of metals.

However, the purest magnesium ever
produced on earth still has impurities
which could be identified in the speectro-
graphic analysis. The Ubatuba samples
showed none.

The ASTM standard of purity for mag-
nesium (ASTM 4-0770) shows, in the
spectrographic analysis, the following
impurities: Ca, 0.19%, and traces of Al,
Cu, Fe and Si.

In other words, the magnesium in the
samples analyzed, which was absolutely
pure, represents something outside the
range of present-day technological de-_
velopments of our science. On the basis
of this study, it is highly probable that
the metallic chunks picked up on a beach
near Ubatuba, Sao Paulo, are really frag-
ments of a flying disc.

The object which exploded above the
beach at Ubatuba, Brazil was made of
1009, magnesium, which is not within the
technology of our times. APRO rests its
case.

(Editor’'s Note: The documented report, -
plus speetrographic film, X-Ray diffrac-
tion analysis film and Dr. Barbosa’s re-
port and the chemist’s report, are on
file at APROQ’s headquarters.)

Don’t Miss...

the full story of APRO’s attempt to get
the facts about physical evidence to the
public; repercussions, phone-tapping, an-
onymous warnings, ete. “Expert” at-
tempts to identify magnesium as con-
ventional space probe project. . . MAY
ISSUE, APRO BULLETIN.
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tion to the public be realistic and knowl-
edgeable. Normally that explanation will
be made only by the USAF Information
Office. It all adds up to part of the job
of being experts in our own domain.”

And so we can see that the UFO issue
is far from dead with the USAF. There
can be no doubt that, to use the words
NICAP spokesman Vice Adm. R. H.
Hillenkoetter (Ret.), ‘“behind the scenes,
high-ranking Air Force officers are sober-
ly concerned about UFO’s.”

The Polar Satellite —
What Is [t?

For days in the early part of February
the whole world riveted its collective
attention on the dark polar satellite which
had been detected by the United States’
tracking system. Dubbed the “Black
Knight” by some, the unidentified object
radiated no light, was tumbling in space,
and was not emitting radio signals. The
U. S. Defense Department said it might
have been a Russian ‘‘spy satellite,”
which was denied by the Russians, We
tend to accept this as gospel because
Russians would be quick to claim any
space achievement in order to score an-
other propaganda victory. APRO staff
members considered the possibility that
the object might have been a captured
natural satellite from the Canadian pre-
cession of 1920.

One by one the usual explanations were
ruled out until two remained: the shell
of a rocket stage which had approxi-
mated polar orbit, or a UAO. The former
was the explanation picked out by the
Defense Department to explain away the
mystery object.

WHAT WAS NOT REVEALED WAS
THE FOLLOWING: The ‘‘Black Knight”
had been tracked since the 4th of Janu-
ary, was one of two dark satellites in
polar orbits, both of which weighed in
the neighborhood of 15 tons each! The
agency from which APRO obtained its
information certainly should know what
the score is, and the leak of information
occurred during an attempt to coordinate
efforts at tracking the object. In fact,
APRO’s information preceded that of the
newspaper release by several days.

Army Reg Concerns

Tracking Unknowns

The United States Army has in its cur-
rent file of Classified Regulations, one
which authorizes, in fact, urges, the track-
ing of any object exceeding Mach 1
above 50,000 feet altitude. This can hardly
be construed as pertaining to satellites,
which orbits are placed a considerably
larger distance out in space, so it must
be assumed that the Army is watching
for high-flying unidentified aerial objects.

Mystery Flash and

Power Failure

A bevy of clippings from various news-
papers in the West revealed the informa-
tion in early February that a strange
brilliant flash of light had been observed
by thousands in a four-state area.

On February 7 at 12:03 Mountain Stan-
dard Time, a flash of light which illumi-
nated the cabin of a Western Airlines
plane piloted by Captain Richard Belew
of Salt Lake City. “It was fantastically
bright,” he said. ‘It started as a low
blue light, then came a blinding flash.”
Belew's plane was approximately forty
miles south of Great Falls, Montana.

At Butte, Montana, the secretary at a
radio station observed that a noise like
several jets on takeoff, followed the flash.

The most curious thing about this story
is the newspaper report that a power
failure at the Atomic Energy Commis-
sion’s reactor testing station in Eastern
Idaho, took place 214 hours later. Mack
Corbett, Director of Information for the
AEC station, took pains to inform news-
men that there was no flash at the time
of the power failure, as had been report-
ed. He then explained that the power
failure was believed due to a bird or
birds flying into the power line.

Amateur astronomer Floyd Rickores,
Hollywood, California, said he tracked a
red ball in the sky for nearly five min-
utes after a ‘‘bright flash” lighted the
room. “‘It seemed to stay stationary be-
tween two stars for three or four min-
utes,” he said, “then took off with fan-
tastic speed and disappeared.”

Although there was no official expla-
nation by responsible agencies, news-
papers tended to assume that the flash
was made by a meteor.

APRO believes there are too many co-
incidences involved in this incident, in-
cluding Rickores’ observation, which took
place within a short space of time afler
the flash over Utah, Wyoming, Idaho and
Montana, and the power failure at the
AEC station.

Shortly thereafter, strange things were
seen in the skies throughout the U. S. ...

Takanashi to Study
Ice Fall Data

Mr. Takanashi, our Japanese represen-
tative, has projected the study of unusual
ice falls in the near future. He has asked
the United States staff to forward data
concerning airborne ice chunks to him
for study and correlation. He has a defi-
nite theory in mind, and if members will
continue to forward information pertain-
ing to this facet of aerial phenomena to
headquarters, said data will be forwarded
to Takanashi with regular packets of
related information.

Agencies. ..

(Continued from page 3)
not explain them despite conjecture about
crashing rockets, we must then assume
that the formation of lights was prob-
ably a flock of UAOs.

Notes and Comments

APRO mentioned in an Editorial in the
Cleveland Plain Dealer, March 6, 1960,
entitled “‘Secrecy About UFOs Is Over-
done . . ."” We would like to give more
detailed comment pertaining to the fine
work on behalf of APRO which is being
done by our Photo Consultant, John T.
Hopf. Not only tops in photography he
has proved to be a first-class recruiter.
... George Todt, columnist for the Valley
Times, Pasadena, Calif., was awarded
the Freedom Foundation George Wash-
ington Honor Medal. George is a UFO
enthusiast and some of his comment
about the subject has been read into
the Congressional Record. . . A Mr.
Keith L. Milner of Cheltenham, England
claims he is building a saucer which
will be a “sort of anti-gravity machine
made up of copper and zinc plates that
are supposed to spin and draw their
energy from supersonic sounds in the
atmosphere. . . . UFORC of Akron, Ohio
has produced another excellent special
report, dealing with the sighting of scv-
eral objects by American and United
Airlines pilots on 24 February 1959; this
report is comparable to the Fitzgerald
report and would be an important addi-
tion to any enthusiast’s file. . . . A recent
(9 February) news release out of Mos-
cow quotes the opinions of Soviet scien-
tist M. Agrest, relative to the actual
demolition of the Biblical cities, Sodom
and Gomorrah. Agrest stated he believes
present-day nuclear scientists should in-
vestligate possible radioactive deposits in
Biblical areas in question. He believes
the destruction of the cities was brought
about by space travelers, and that the
structure of Heliopolis, containing some
of the largest single pieces of stone ever
shaped by man, was used for a launch-
ing platform for the home-bound space-
travelers. . . . Prof. Fred T. Haddock, of
the University of Michigan's astronomy
department, has announced that an al-
tempt to contact intelligent beings on
other planets will be made this spring
by several leading American astrono-
mers. Using the most up-to-date sensi-
tive Instruments, they will attempt to
intercept messages which may be trans-
mitted from billions of miles out in
space. . . .

For your copy of UFORC's “REPQRT
ON UNIDENTIFIED FLYING OB-
JECTS” mentioned ahove, send $1.00 to
UFORC, P. O. Box 5242, Akron, Ohio.
Why not order an extra copy and present
it to your local library?
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UAQ Sightings Over Trindade
By Ovavo T. Fontes, M.D.
Part II
The NE ““Almirante Saldanha’ Incident.
The UAO Photos Authenticated

by the Brazilian Navy

In early January, 1958, the ship ‘“‘Almi-
rante Saldanha’ left Rio de Janeiro’s
harbor and proceeded toward the Island
of Trindade with a crew of three hun-
dred. That ship had been previously a
Brazilian Navy school-ship, but it had
been converted into a hydrographic unit
to be used for investigations connected
with IGY research. It belonged to the
Hydrography and Navigation Division of
the Brazilian Navy and, since October,
1957, the ship had made several trips to
Trindade, most of them econnected with
the Navy's oceanographic studies for the
IGY.

Several civilians were aboard the ship
this time, invited officially to collaborate
with the Navy Ministry in the scientific
studies which were underway at the
Island. One man was Almiro Barauna, a
photographer and former newspaperman
now working as a ‘““free lancer.” He was
also an expert in submarine photography
and had been invited to work in the
field for the Navy.

After a routine trip the ship arrived at
the Island and stayed there for several
days. It was scheduled to leave for Rio
on January 16. That day, at 12:15 p.m.,
when the ship was preparing to depart,
a strange object was sighted simultane-
ously by a number of observers gathered
on the deck. The UAO came toward the
Island at high speed, hovered briefly
over a peak, disappeared behind it for
a short time, and appeared again to move
away loward the sea. Mr. Barauna was
taking pictures of the ship’s maneuvers
at that moment. He spotted the UAO and
got four pictures of it.

Let’s review what happened as told in
the witnesses’ own words. Let’s begin
with Almiro Barauna's report. He was
interviewed by reporter Joao Martins and
his statements were published in the
magazine 0 CRUZEIRO (March 8, 1958).
They are transcribed below:

“’Barauna’s Report

“Q. Mr, Barauna, what were the rea-
sons for your presence aboard the NE
‘Almirante Saldanha'? A. The Navy has
invited several teams specialized in sub-
marine hunting to visit the Island of Trin-
dade. I am a member of the Icarai Club
for Submarine Hunting, and our group
was invited for the last trip. So, on Janu-
ary 8, when the ship left Rio, I was
aboard together with the following mem-
bers of my group: Amilar Vieira Filho,
captain of our team, a Government em-
ployee (he has a job at the CACEX);
Jose Teobaldo Viegas, instructor at the
Aero Club of Niteroi and Air Force Cap-
tain (retired); Mauro Andrade, from the
London Bank; and Aloisio, municipal

TRINDADE

ISLAND

PRINCIPE

ATLANTICGC

< ALN; SALDANHA)

“ALMIRANTE SALDANHA" was anchored close to the point near the “Galo Crest”
Peak and photographer Barauna was at the stern. The UAQ was first seen over the sea,
coming toward the island. The first photo was taken at position 1, with the object
[lying at low speed. Photo number 2 was shot when it was placed behind the “Gallo
Crest.” Photo 3 was taken a few seconds after the turn made by the UAO near
“Desejado” Peak. Photos 4 and 5 failed to the register the UAO, which was then
flying at high speed. The last picture. number 6, was taken when the object was
moving away close to the horizon line. It disappeared a few seconds later.

employee at the TFederal District. We
were going to try to beat some records
on submarine hunting. Personally, I was
going to take underwater photographs
for the Navy, and also to write some
articles aboutl the Island and the activi-
ties of the scientists working for the IGY.

“Q. Was any other civilian aboard,
besides your group? A. Yes. There was
Prof. Fernande, a geologist, with two
assistants, and also a photographer, and
a reporter from the newspaper ‘JORNAL
DO BRASIL'. The three scientists left
the ship and went to the island.

“Q. Please tell me what was the date
of the sighting? What happened? A. It
was on January 16, at 12:15 p.m. The
ship was preparing to leave the island,
to come back to Rio. I was on the deck
observing the operations to take aboard
the boat used in the trips between the
ship and the island (the island has no
harbor). The sea was agitated. The wea-
ther was cloudy, clear, with no shadows.
I had my Rolleiflex 2.8—model E, which
was kept inside an aluminum box for
protection. against the corrosive effects
of water and salt. I had left by Leica
with a telephoto lens in my cabin a few
moments before. The deck was full of
sailors and officers. Suddenly, Mr. Ami-
lar Vieira and Captain Viegas called
me, pointing to a certain spot in the sky
and yelling about a bright object which
was approaching the island. At this same
moment, when I was still trying to see

what it was, Lieutenant Homero—the
ship’s dentist—came from the bow to-
ward us, running, pointing out to the sky
and also yelling about an object he was
sighting. He was so disturbed and ex-
cited that he almost fell down after col-
liding with a cable. Then I was finally
able to locate the object, by the flash
(of light) it emitted. It was already close
to the island. It glittered at certain mo-
ments, perhaps reflecting the sunlight,
perhaps changing its own light—I don’t
know. It was coming over the sea, mov-
ing toward the point called the ‘Galo
Crest’. T had lost 30 seconds looking for
the object, but the camera was already
in my hands, ready, when I sighted it
clearly silhouetted against the clouds.
I shot two photos before it disappeared
behind the peak ‘Desejado’. My camera
was set at speed 125, with the aperture
at /8, and this was the cause of an

- over-exposure error, as I discovered

later.

“The object remained out of sight for
a few seconds—behind the peak—reap-
pearing higger in size and flying in the
opposite direction, but lower and closer
than before, and moving at a higher
speed. I shot the third photo. The fourth
and fifth ones were lost, not only because
of the speed the saucer was moving, but
also for another reason: in the confusion
produced as a result of the sighting, I
was being pulled and pushed by other

(See Trindade. page 6)
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persons also trying to spot the object
and, as a consequence, photographed the
sea and the island only—not the object.
It was moving again toward the sea, in
the direction from which it had come,
and it appeared to stop in mid-air for a
brief time. At that moment I shot my
last photo (the last on the film). After
about 10 seconds, the object continued
to increase its distance from the ship,
gradually diminishing in size and finally
disappearing into the horizon.

“Q. Did you hear anything unusual
during the sighting? Was the object emit-
ting any sound? A. I am not sure, to be
honest, because of the noise made by the
sea waves against the island’s rocks, as
well as for the yelling aboard the ship
at the time. However, I think that I
heard nothing besides those sounds.

“Q. What was the color of the object?
A. Tt showed a dark grey color, appear-
ing {o be surrounded—mostly in the area
ahead of it—by a kind of condensation of
a greenish, phosphorescent vapor (or
mist).

“Q. Did the object appear to be me-
talliec? A. Yes. It was obviously a solid
object.

“Q. How was it flying? Any special
characteristic? A. Yes. It showed an
undulatory movement as it flew across

the sky, like the flight of a bat. And

when it eame back, it changed speed
abruptly, with no transition, in a jump.

“Q. Do you know how many persons
aboard the ‘Almirante Saldanha’ sighted
the object? A. The object was sighted
by almost all the people on the deck at
that time, including Lieutenant Homero,
Captain Viegas and Mr, Amilar Vieira.

“Q. What happened after the sighting?
A. The ship’s commander and several
officers from the garrison wanted to see
what I had got in the photos. As I was
very curious too, I decided to develop
the exposed film at once, aboard the
ship. The processing was done under the
supervision of several officers, including
Com. Carlos A. Bacellar. But only the
negatives were scen aboard, The reason:
there was no photographic paper for the
copies on the ship at that time. The
negatives, however, were seen and exam-
ined by the whole crew.

“Q. Did you keep the nagtives in your
hands? A. Yes.

“Q. Were you under any pressure to
give up those negatives to the Navy’s
authorities? A. No. Com, Saldanha da
Gama (the ship’s C.0.) and the other
Navy officers aboard were very kind.
They never tried to get the negatives
from me.

“Q. What happened when the ship
came back to Rio? A. The ship stopped
first at Vitoria, in the State of Espirito
Santo. As it was going to stay there for
two days and later travel to Rio, we

were permitted—the civilians from the
submarine hunting group only—to leave
the ship there and to take a bus for the
rest of the trip. Later, two days after
the arrival of the ‘Almirante Saldanha’
at Rio, Com. Bacellar (ex-commander
of the Navy Post at Trindade) appeared
at my residence. He wanted to see the
enlargements made from the negatives,
and asked permission to take them to
the Navy’s authorities. Two days later
they were returned with congratulations.
I was also requested to appear at the
Navy Ministry as soon as possible. They
wanted to ask me certain questions, and
to see the negalives again.

“Q. And what happened there? A. I
was interviewed by several high-staff
officers, who asked me all kinds of ques-
tions. I went there twice. At the first
meeting, they requested the negatives
for examination. They were sent to a
civilian organization, the ‘Cruzeiro do
Sul Aerophotogrammetric Service’, re-
maining there for four days. I was told
by the Navy officers that the analyses
proved they were genuine — excluding
definitely the possibility of a trick or
falsification. On the second visit, they
performed several ‘Time-tests’. While I
worked with my Rolleiflex, taking shots
at the same time-intervals I had used
to photograph the object, three Navy
officers with chronometers registered the
limes. They came f{o the conclusion—
based on these tests as well as on studies
concerning the ship’s position and exami-
nations of charts of the Island—that the
object was [lying at a speced between 900
and 1000 Km./hour (600 m.p.h.). The
object’s size was also estimated, on the
basis of studies related with the Island’s
details also appearing on the photos,
diagrams drawn on charts, graphs, cte.
The object was about 120 feet in diam-
eter, and about 24 feet high.

“@Q. Do you know anything about the
official report on the case? A. I saw a
‘dossier’ which was consulled many
times during the interrogation. However,
I didn’t read what was written there.
I was also informed that my pholos,
mixed with other pictures, had been
shown to witnesses of the sighting—to be
identified. The result was positive.

“Q. Do you know anything about any
photos by other people aboard the ship?
A. No. Besides myself, there were at
least four other persons with cameras
at the time of the sighting. But appar-
ently they were not able to spot the
object in time, or were paralyzed hy
their own emotions.

“Q. Were you warned against some-
thing by the Navy's authorities? Was
there some recommendation? A. Yes.
They requested me to keep the matter
secret for some time, I was permitted
to publish the case only after authori-
zation from the Navy. The permission
was granfed, verbally, on the night of
February 15, by Com. Bacellar. They

made only one restriction, which I can-
not mention for the reason that I have
given my word. . . .

“Q. Do you know if your sighting was
the first over the Island of Trindade?
A. T was informed of four other sight-
ings over the island during those thirty
days preceding the incident of January
16. T was also informed of another thing:
At one of those sightings, the ‘object’
was photographed by a Navy sergeant.
His photo obviously was not released and
probably never will be—the reasons are
evident. Besides those four sightings,
there was also the radar case. A ‘target’
flying at supersonic speed was tracked
through the radar of the ‘Almirante Sal-
danha’, on January 15,

“Q. Did you receive any money from
the Navy for your work at the Island
of Trindade? A. No. I was there as a
guest.

“Q. Did you receive any moncy from
the Navy for your photographic work, or
for the enlargements you made for them?
A. No. I only received the photographic
paper to be used for enlargements.

“Q. How many enlargements have you
given them? A. Thirty-eight.

“Q. One last question: What kind of
impression did you get from observing
the ‘flying saucer’? A. I am absolulely
sure it was a controlled object—either
directly or by remote control—but very
well operated, in any case. The gencral
impression of people aboard the ship was
the same: it had come to make a close
observation of the ship.” Unquote.

The interview transcribed above was
rechecked and confirmed by the witness.
However, Mr. Barauna also talked to the
press reporting additional details not
mentioned previously. The more interest-
ing were the following ones:

(1) “I cannot estimate the number of
persons on the ship’s deck at the moment
of the sighting., However, during the offi-
eial investigation ordered by Com. Sal-
danha da Gama, about one hundred mem-
bers from the ship’s crew confirmed that
they had sighted the UAO.

“The radar was not in operation at the
time. The object was already gone when
it was put to work.

“I shot the six pictures in about 14
seconds.” (Rio de Janeiro ULTIMA HO-
RA, February 21, 19538)

(2) “I was worried for a few days after
an officer told me that I was under mili-
tary regulations, as any civilian aboard
a Navy ship, so that the film was going
to be confiscated according to orders from
the Navy Headquarters, al Rio. But noth-
ing happened. Now I am convinced that
he was joking.” (Rio de Janeiro ULTIMA
HORA, February 22, 1858)

BARAUNA'S INTERROGATION AT

THE NAVY MINISTRY

On February 24, 1958, the newspaper
“0 GLOBO” printed an exclusive inter-
view with Almiro Barauna about his in-

(See Trindade, page 7)
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terrogation at the Navy Ministry. As that
part of his story had not been reported
yet in full detail, it is interesting to know
what he said in that interview, which is
{ranseribed below:

“I went to the Navy DMinistry for a
four-hour interrogation about the photo-
graphs. The negatives were projected on
a large sized screen. After a careful
examination by all officers from the Navy
General Staff gathered at the place, the
Chief of the Intelligence Service (who
was the officer of highest rank there)
told me the following: ‘I am going to ask
questions. Do not be offended, for I do
not doubt the authenticity of your pie-
tures. But we need your answers for
some questions. Now, if you were going
to fake a photo, how should it be done
in order to escape detection?’

“‘Commander, as an expert in pho-
tography, I am well aware that no photo
of such a kind could resist an accurate
examination,” was my answer.

““In your opinion,” said the Comman-

der, ‘what should be done to distinguish -

a faked photograph from a good one?’

“ ‘A laboratory examination of the neg-
atives should be made on the following
points: granulation, emulsion, and large-
scale projection. The definite proof, how-
ever, good enough to detect any tricks,
would be a microscopic examination,” I
said to them. ‘It would demonstrate the
increase in granulation connected with
the double-exposure needed for the trick,’
I concluded.

“After a few more questions, the in-
telligence officer said: ‘We want your
negatives for those examinations. Do you
agree?’ I agreed, of course, and he got
the film. These things happened three
days after the arrival of the ‘Almirante
Saldanha,” at the Navy's Intelligence
Headquarters. A few days later, the nega-
tives were returned in an official enve-
lope with a card informing me about the
results of the analyses.

“Some days later I was called again.
This time they also asked for my Rollei-
flex. They wanted to make tests in order
to estimate, if possible, the speed of the
flying saucer at the moment of the sight-
ing. The tests were performed. They
showed that I had taken my six pictures
in 14 seconds, and that the saucer was
flying at 900 to 1000 Km./hour. One of
my photographs, taken when the saucer
was hovering over the ‘Desejado’ Peak,
stopped in space, did not show (as they
said) the turbulence in the surrounding
air observed in the others with the object
moving. There was a kind of vapor or
condensation in front of the flying object
when it was moving—similar to that pro-
duced by the engines of a jet plane.

“Al the end of the meeting, the Intelli-
gence chief officer said he was convinced
that my photos were authentic. Then he

showed me another photo which had been
taken by a Navy telegraphist-sergeant—
also at Trindade. A box camera had been
used. I was surprised. That photo showed
the same object seen in my pictures. It
was evidently the final proof. They told
me it had been taken some time before
my arrival at the Island.’”” Unquote,
ADDITIONAL REPORTS ABOUT
THE INCIDENT

When the curtain of security around the
sighting was broken, the Navy General
Staff released special instructions forbid-
ding the ship's crew and Navy officers
to have any contact with the press on
the matter. The Navy authorities refused
at first to make any comment on the
incident. All military chiefs interviewed
by the press denied any knowledge of
the matter, or said that only Minister
Alves Camera was entitled to say any-
thing. Some Navy departments even tried
to show a complete lack of interest,
explaining that the pictures had been
taken by a civilian eventually aboard a
warship. On the other hand, the NE
“Almirante Saldanha” remained off Rio
de Janeiro’s harbor and finally received
orders to leave Guanabara Bay “to make
another trip related with IGY studies.”
This occurred on February 21, at a time
when newspapermen were making des-
perate attempts to reach the crew kept
aboard the ship. At the last moment be-
fore the ship’s departure, it was divulged
that reporters were free at least to con-
tact the crew and get their reports on
the flying saucer. However, the permis-
sion was denicd by a counter order, for
the Navy General Staff was against it.
New instructions were issued to sailors
and officers aboard the ship emphasiz-
ing that no contacts with the press were
permitted. That same day (Feb. 21), a
Navy spokesman called the press to say
that the Navy had no responsibility re-
garding the incident, and that no official
statement was to be released about it.
But he agreed that the following infor-
mation—with no official support—might
be published:

“On the morning of January 16, 1958,
over the Island of Trindade, the ecrew of
the school ship ‘Almirante Saldanha’
sighted an unidentified aerial object for
a few seconds. A civilian who was aboard
the ship took some pictures of the object.
The Navy has no connection with the
case, and its only connection with the
occurrence was the fact that the pho-
tographer was aboard the school ship,
and came back with the ship to Rio.”
Unquote (ULTIMA HORA, Feb. 21)

Another spokesman, from the Navy
High Staff Command, released the fol-
lowing statement to the newspaper O
GLOBO, the same day:

“The news about a flying saucer sight-
ed over the Island of Trindade were
received here with utmost reserve. There
will be an investigation to verify the
authenticity of the sighting and photos.

No officer or sailor from the NE ‘Almi-
rante Saldanha’ witnessed the cvent.”

It was evident that the Navy authori-
ties didn’t realize the incident was too
big to be concealed. Their desperate at-
tempt to give the impression that the
Navy had nothing to do with the incident
was a foolish move. To deny any con-
nection with the incident was a childish
thing, The ‘“‘unofficial statement’ should
not have been released. The press and
the public already knew enough to see
where the truth lay. On the other hand,
the strict orders which forbade military
people to give out any information on
the matter did not apply to civilian ob-
servers aboard the ship. They talked to
the press. Captain J. T. Viejas, from the
AF (ret.), was the first to confirm Ba-
rauna’s report in a press interview on
February 22. His report is transcribed
below:

“I was on the deck. My friend Amilar
Vieira Filho suddenly called my atiten-
tion to what he thought to be a ‘big sea-
gull.” T looked toward it and was unable
to control my excitement, shouting: ‘Fly-
ing saucer!” Mr: Barauna was 20 yards
away with his Rolleiflex, watching the
maneuvers. He heard my shouts and
came running—in time to take four pic-
tures of the object. Other people were
also alerted by my alarm: a sergeant,
sailors, the ship's dentist (Lieutenant-
Captain Homero Ribeiro), and other per-
sons. They all sighted the object. The
photographer Farias de Azevedo, who
was more distant, didn’t come in time
to get photos.

“The first view was that of a disk
shining with a phosphorescent glow,
which—even at daylight—appeared to be
brighter than the moon. The object was
about the apparent size (angular diam-
eter) of the full moon. As it followed its
path across the sky, changing to a tilted
position, its real shape was clearly out-
lined against the sky: that of a flattened
sphere encircled, at the equator, by a
large ring or platform. Its speed was
around 700 miles an hour at the moment
it disappeared into the horizon.

“The object was sighted at 12:20 p.m.,
when the ship was preparing to leave
the area. It caused a tremendous con-
fusion aboard. Mr, Barauna found it very
difficult to operate his camera, being
pushed and pulled by excited observers
around him. In fact, he was almost
thrown into the sea. He got so nervous
after the sighting that he needed more
than an hour to calm down and be able
to develop the film. However, in his ex-
citement he forgot to rewind the film
before opening the camera, and it would
have been ruined if he had not been
warned by an officer at the last moment.

“The negatives were immediately de-
veloped by Barauna in the presence of
Com. Bacellar. The whole crew was
gathered outside, waiting with great

(See Trindade, page 8)
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anxiety for the results. The negatives
were seen by everybody on the ship.

“When the ship arrived at Rio, the
negatives were taken to the Navy Minis-
try and projected on a screen, together
with a picture of a flying saucer sent
from the U.S., in a military report in-
forming the Navy about sightings made
in that country., A comparative study
demonstrated that the object sighted at
Trindade was similar in shape to the
one photographed in the U. S.

“TFlying saucers have been sighted sev-
eral times in the past months by mem-
bers of the Navy Post at the Island of
Trindade. Some of those people observed
UFOs on more than one occasion last
year, and were even able to guess with
accuracy the time a saucer would be
sighted again over the island (the exact
hour). But it was believed that they were
mistaken. There are a lot of sea-gulls in
that region. In any case, Com. Bacellar
was so worried about the presence of
UFOs around weather balloons launched
from the island that, in November 1957,
he sent a radio message to the Navy
reporting the strange events.” Unguote
(Rio de Janeiro DIARIO DA NOITE, O
JORNAL, etc., February 22, 1958)

Captain Viegas' interview was a tre-
mendous blow for the group who siill
tried to keep the secrecy about the inci-
dent. The press reaction to the Navy’'s
altitude was going o be dangerous unless
the policy to deny any connection with
the case was changed at once. It was
obvious that to forestall any more trou-
ble the Navy had to talk freely about
the facts and not try to hide them. As
a result, statements of several Navy au-
thorities were released that same day—
all of them confirming the sighting and
the existence of the photographs. Some
of these statements will be transcribed
in another part of this report, but one
of them will be presented now—for it
came from an officer who was aboard
the NE ‘Almirante Saldanha’ when the
UAQ was sighted.

This officer was Com. Paulo Moreira
da Silva, of the Navy’'s Hydrography and
Navigation Service. He was interviewed
on February 22 by reporters from the
newspapers ‘O JORNAL” and “DIARIO
NA NOITE,” releasing the following
statement:

““The object sighted in the skies of
Trindade was not a weather balloon,
necither an American guided missile. I
cannot give yet my conclusions, for the
data are being analyzed in a secret
evaluation at the Navy Ministry. I can
tell, however, that the object was not a
meteorological balloon—for the one which
we had launched that day was released
at 9:00 a.m., two hours before the ap-
pearance of the object in the sky. This
balloon was tracked until it burst at the

proper altitude. Besides, while the object
was encircled by a greenish glow, our
balloon was of red color. Also it was
not a guided missile from the U. S., be-
cause the Island of Trindade is off the
route of those rockets; they are launched
from Florida in the direction of Ascen-
sion Island.”” Unquote

The reports from other civilian obser-
vers aboard the NE “Almirante Saldan-
ha’ were also printed in the press. One
of them came from Mr. Mauro Andrade,
employee of the London Bank of South
America, and member of Barauna's
group. In an interview published in the
newspaper “O GLOBO" (Feb. 22, 1958),
he said:

“I didn’t witness the sighting because
I was inside the ship, not on the deck,
when the object was seen. But I can
give a list of responsible people who saw
it and saw the photographer Barauna
take the pictures as well as develop the
negatives.

“] don’t know how I was tracked by
the press. I was startled by the publi-
cation of news and photos related with
the incident because we had promised—
all of us—to keep the whole thing secret.

“I was somewhere inside the ship, was
alerted by the shouts, and ran outside to
see what was happening. Yet I didn’t see
the object. But all people T found on deck
told me that they had really sighted a
flying saucer. 1 believed them, and my
belief was confirmed by the film devel-
oped aboard. In fact, I saw a thing on
the negatives which looked like a flying
saucer, although I cannot be sure if it
was really one of them. The film was
developed before the eyes of witnesses,
and was shown laler to every one
aboard.” Unquote.

The other report came from Mr. Amilar
Vieira Filho, president of the Icarai Club
for Submarine Hunting, and member of
the CACEX Research Division (a Federal
Department). He avoided any contact
with the press for several days, but was
finally interviewed by a reporter from

the newspaper ‘O GLOBO” on February -

27. He explained that his attitude was
based on two reasons: first, the compro-
mise assumed by the whole delegation
of his Club to tell nothing about the
strange sighting of January 16, at Trin-
dade; and second, his natural aversion
to any kind of publicity. However, after
the Navy official relecase on the matter,
and after the interview given by other
members of his group, he felt that the
silence he had imposed on himself was
not justified anymore. He made the fol-
lowing statement:

“First, I want to make it very clear
that I don’t know if what I saw was really
the so-called ‘flying saucer.” What I saw,
in faect, was an object of grey color and
oval in shape when first sighted, which
passed over the island and then—emit-
ting a fluorescent light it didn’t possess
before—went away toward the horizon

and was gone, vanishing just on the
horizon line. Everything happened in just
a few seconds, in no more than 20 sec-
onds, and for this reason I cannot give
you more details about the curious craft.
It looked like an objeet with polished
surface and uniform color. I am sure it
was not a balloon, an airplane, or a sca-
gull.”

He was not going to tell anything more,
but the reporter decided to ask a last
question:

“Flying saucer or not, can you tell me
if the strange object you sighted was the
same registered on Barauna’s photos?”’
After a brief hesitation came the answer:

“As I said before, the thing was too
rapid. It was almost impossible for the
human vision to fix any detail of the
object. Mr. Barauna, however, was op-
erating with a camera of modern t{ype
which was able to register those details.
Generally speaking, the shape of the
object sighted was the same seen on the
negatives developed aboard the NE ‘Al-
mirante Saldanha.’

The reports of Captain Viegas, Mauro
Andrade, and Amilar Vieira Filho repre-
sent additional evidence confirming the
story told by Almiro Barauna, They were
rechecked with the witnesses and con-
firmed. They were not denied by the
Brazilian Navy. However, two things are
still lacking to meet the challenge of the
UAO agnostics—the non-believers. One of
them is an official release from the Navy
confirming the whole thing. The other is
a written statement signed by Com. Ba-
cellar, former chief of the Navy Post at
Trindade.

These important documents will be pre-
sented in the conclusion of this report,
together with other additional faets con-
nected with the case.

UAO PHOTOGRAPHED

IN VIENNA

The Vienna newspaper Wiener Montag
devoted its whole front page to a picture
of a glowing white object against a dark
background on March 7, and labeled it
the ““most sensational photograph of our
century.”

The newspaper photographer Edgar
Schedelbauer, snapped the piclure on the
2nd of March, over a wooded area in the
Styria Province. Schedelbauer said the
object moved slowly, then hovered for
about 10 seconds. He took several pic-
tures during this time. The newspaper
issued a statement that they published
the picture only after careful consider-
ation and after experts had checked the
negative to determine whether it was a
hoax.

The photographer stated that when the
object, which disappeared after hover-
ing, left, he heard a sound similar to
that of a jet plane.
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ALAMOGORDO, NEW MEXICO — MAY, 1960

EXCLUSIVE 1GY PHOTO ANALYSIS

THE PHYSICAL
EVIDENCE STORY
Editor's Note: The following is a chrono-
logical record of APRO's public release of
information concerning the now-famous
peare magnesiun fragments from Ubatuba,
Brazil. They are, to our knowledge, the
only indisputable physical evidence which
indicates the extraterrestrial nature of the
unconventional aerial objects. On 10
March the [ollowing letter was mailed to
Major Tacker in Washington:

+ * -

We realize that it is unlikely that any
positive action can be taken on the con-
tents of this letter at your level but
are trusting that you will forward it to
the proper agency. We feel, however,
that it should be routed through you since
it concerns directly a recent report issued
by your office to the effecl that the Air
Force has no physical evidence indicating
that any UFOs are real and extraterres-
trial.

A release which you issued early this
year, according to UPI, states: “no
physical or material evidence, not even
a minule fragment of a so-called flying
saucer, has ever been found.” This state-
ment, as it stands, is not true; however
it is not our intent or purpose to belabor
you concerning the accuracy of state-
meonts issued through your office, I have
b2en associated with Public Relations
work long cnough to understand that a
Public Information Office bears the
same relationship to its military service
that an adverlising agency bears to its
sponsor. The function of a public rela-
tions organ is to build the sponsor’s
prestige and sell the product.

APRO has in its possession the physical
cvidence which the United States Air
Force denies having been able to acquire.
It is, in fact, a portion of an extra-
terrestrial vehicle which met with dis-
aster in the earth’s atmosphere. The
catastrophe was witnessed by numerous
human beings. The gratifying aspzct of
this case, however, is that we do not
have to depend on the testimony of wit-
nesses to establish the reality of the
incident for THE MOST ADVANCED
LABORATORY TESTS INDICATE THAT
THE RESIDUAIL. MATERIAL COULD

NOT HAVE BEEN PRODUCED

THROUGH THE APPLICATION OF ANY

KNOWN TERRESTRIAL TECHNIQUES.

It has been claimed by some sources
that the United States Air Force has
proof positive in its possession of the
sort outlined above, and is deliberately
withholding this evidence for rcasons of
its own. It has been postulated by others
that the United States Air Force, through
sheer bureaucratic incompetence, has
failed to acquire or recognize such evi-
dence even though such exists. We do
not have access to sufficient information
to warrant support of ecither position,
nor do we wish to enter this controversy.

Instead, we humbly submit this propo-
sition: The evidence which we have is
available to the United States Air Force
—not to be buried—not to be bickered
about—but rather to be examined by
scientific authorities acceptable to all
parties concerned.

The press carried excerpts from the
letter on the 1ith, 12th and 13th, and
on the 15th, one day after the date of
the letter subsequently received by the
Director, the press carried parts of Major
Tacker's answer to APRO. The following
is the answer which was dated the 14th,
and received on Thursday, 17 March:

Department of the Air Force, Washing-
ton, Office of the Secretary, 14 March,
1960: Dear Mrs. Lorenzen: This is Lo
acknowledge your letter of 9 March 1960
inclosing a photograph of [ragments
which are purported to bhe part of a
“flying saucer’ which exploded within
the earth’s atmosphere. The proper office
to which this evidence should be sub-
mitted is the Aerospace Technical In-
telligence Center at Wright-Patterson Air
Force Basc, Ohio. I am referring your
letter to them immediately and would
suggest that in the interest of time you
submit these fragments to them al once
with a covering letter. I would also sug-
gest that you register these items and
obtain a U. S. Post Office return receipt
for them. Sincerely, signed Lawrence J.
Tacker, Major, USAF, Public Informa-
tion Division, Office of Information.

On the 17th, Mrs., Lorenzen sent the
following telegram to Major Tacker:
Your proposal that APRO send the UFO
residuals to ATIC for study must be

respectiully declined since AFR 200-2

(Sze Physical Evidence, page 2)

Editor's Note: We will precede the con-
clusion of Dr. Fontes' article on the IGY
photographs with the following analysis
of the photographs which was performed
for APRO by our Photo Analyst, Mr. JTohn
T. Hopf. Coupled with the documented
physical cvidence case in our files, we
feel that our case for the criraterrestrial
nature of the UAQ is complete. The an-
alysis [ollows:

* * *

The four photographs taken by Almiro
Barauna on January 16, 1958 are with-
out a doubt the finest record of a UAO
to come into my hands. Although there
can be no question of their authenticity
due to the circumstances under which
they were taken, I have made a careful
study of the 8x 10 enlargements sent to
me. 1 am satisfied that these enlarged
prints and the blow-ups from them which
I made {for publication in the Bulletin
show all or nearly all the detail that was
visible in the negatives, (APRO could not
obtain the negatives.)

The data as previously published in
the Bulletin is as follows—Camera: Rol-
leiflex, Model E, F2.8 lens. Exposure:
8, 1/125 second. Kind of film: Not stated.
Time of day: 12:20 p.m. Weather: Bright
overcast.

Six cxposures were made in 14 sec-
onds as determined by subsequent tests
with the same camera and photographer,
Two of these (Nos. 4 and 5) did not show
the object as the photographer’s aim was
upset by the confusion on deck. (See dia-
gram in the March Bulletin.)

1 have carefully weighed this data
against the actual appearance of the
photographs and have reached these con-
clusions:

1. The general appearance of the sky,
water, rock detail, ete., indicates that
they were taken on an overcast day.

2. The densily and contrast of the
UAO is that of a solid object at a con-
siderable distance from the camera under
such lighting conditions. This was check-
cd by comparison with many similar
distant photographs of conventional air-
craft taken under overcast conditions.
This comparison also indicates a likely
size of 120 x 24 feet as deduced from the
studies and tests made by the Brazilian
government.

(See IGY Phato, page 4)
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EDITORIAL

This short editorial will serve to clarify
a few things, including the extreme tardi-
ness of this issue of the Bulletin. Mr.
Hopf has, unfortunately, experienced
some grief and grave illness within his
family and ecverything considered, we
are very grateful for his excellent work
on the IGY pictures despite the fact that
the Bulletin had to wait for an analysis,
thus being late.

The information divulged concerning
the physical evidence story is all fact,
and no assumptions are included. We
have given the members the straight
story without embellishments. The staff
feels that the membership is intelligent
enough to draw ils own conclusions.

We take this opportunily to express
our gratitude to Joao Martins of O Cru-
zeiro magazine, for his excellent cover-
age of the Physical Evidence story and
lo Dr. Fontes, our medical doctor Repre-
sentative in Brazil for doing a Spartan
job of gelting the facts to th2 press of
South America. As well as all major
newspapers in South America, the story
was carried by O Cruzeiro snd Visao.

We were happy to see that both Joao's
and Olavo's pictures were used, thus
establishing them as experts on the sub-
ject of UAO in their country and on the
South American continent. This was Dr.
Fontes’ first introduction to the public
as a UAOQ investigator and researcher,
but Martins has been known as an expert

in the field for many years.
We have had some complaints about

the tardiness of this issue, but by and
large, most members have been patient.
We would like to remind the member-
ship that despite sickness, financial prob-
lems and the other inhibiting factors
which hinder a UAO research editor and
staff, we are still the only serious UAO
research group which is publishing regu-
larly and usually on schedule. Delays are
unavoidable at times, but we continue to
do our best.

The Staff urges members to send clip-
pings dealing with APRO’s press release
of 13 March 1960 so that copies of the
March Bulletin can be mailed to the
newspapers who were interested in the
Physical Evidence story. The press wires
did not carry through with the story, and
when the details were released, AP killed
the story at Kansas City, and UPI car-
ried several mentions on its radio wire
for one day. Therefore, it is important
that each and every publication which
carried details be presented with the full
story.

IMPORTANT NOTICE

Effective 30 June, APRO’s new
address will be 4740 E. Cooper,
Tucson, Arizona. Mr. Lorenzen has
accepted a position with the Nation-
al Science Foundation at the Kitt
Peak Observatory there. The pro-
ject's goal is the placement of a
50-inch reflector diffraction limited
telescope in 24-hour orbit. Corre-
spondence from headquarters will
come to a virtual halt until the new
headquarters are established and the
Lorenzens hope members will un-
derstand this necessary slow-down.

Physical Evidence...

(Continued from page 1)

would preveni release to the public of
any test results obtained there. Our
moral obligation to our members and
the general public prevents us from
entering inte such an arrangement. Sign-
ed, Coral Lorenzen, Director, APRO.,

Along with this telegram, a release was
made to the press wire service and local
news agencies:

Mrs. Lorenzen announced that mem-
bers of the APRO staff are busy pre-
paring a brief containing all pertinent

facts relating to the ph;Sical evidence,
for release to news media. It will contain
time, place, circumstances of the inei-
dent from which the mysterious metal
arose. In addition it will outline the
various tests which were performed lead-
ing to the conclusion that the material
could not have originated on this planet.
Mrs. Lorenzen expects the brief o be
ready within two days, and explained
that APRO members and staff members
are volunteer workers and all efforts on
behalf of APRO are on a spare-time
basis.

On the 14th, a short release to pacify
the reporters which had begun hammer-
ing at APRO’s door, had been given out
which clearly outlined our plans: “If Air
Force response is favorable APRO will
suggest the following three-point pro-
gram: (1) APRO officers working with
duly appointed AF liaison personnel
would establish a board of experts repre-
senting military and civilian UFO re-
searchers, (2) Said board would decide
what meaningful tests need to be per-
formed on the material in question. (3)
The board would then select a qualified
testing agency where tests would be per-
formed under its cognizance.”

This offer plus that of the initial letter
of 9 March were completely ignored, and
in a letter dated 23 March, Tacker talked
about 200-2; “Dear Mrs. Lorenzen: I refer
to your Western Union telegram dated 17
March 1960 stating that APRO would not
send the UFO residue it elaims to have
to the Aerospace Technical Intelligence
Center at Wright-Patterson Air Force
Base, Ohio, because Air Force Regulation
200-2 would prevent release of the find-
ings to the general public. This is erro-
neous and I ecan assure you that Air
Force findings would be released imme-
diately to the general public and the
purported UFO evidence would be re-
turned to your organization upon com-
pletion of the analysis and/or evaluation.

Mrs. Lorenzen's answer, dated 2 April,
is as follows:

Dear Sir:

Your letter of 23 March 1960 is re-
assuring but confusing. In a position as
critical as the one we presently occupy,
we cannot afford to proceed on the basis
of faith or idle assumption. Therefore,
would you please clear up the following
points?

1. Is AFR 200-2 superseded by any
other AFR’s? If so, what others?

2. Is AFR 200-2 still in effect?

3. Do you mean to imply that AFR
200-2 will be circumvented or ignored- in
our particular case?

4. Is the assurance stated in your
leiter of 23 March 1960 based on the
assumption that our UFO residue can
be identified as a “familiar object”?

We must have the answers to these
questions before proceeding since the

(See Physica! Evidence, page 3)
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(Continued from page 2)

contents of your letter apparently stand

in direet contradiction to AFR 200-2,

A copy of the Regulations upon which
vou base your premise would be appre-
ciated herec.

This letter was answered by another
irom Tacker dated 5 April, which read:
Dear Mrs. Lorenzen: This is to acknowl-
elge your letter of 2 April 1960 concern-
ing AFR 200-2, For your information I
am enclosing a copy of this regulation.
You will note that paragraph 7b therein
provides for releasing information on
UFOQ sightings and results of investiga-
tions. Paragraph 8 therein also provides
that all information concerning UFOs,
regardless of origin, will be released to
the public by this Office. Nowhere in the
regulation does it preclude providing the
public with information on sightings and
cvaluations. Sincerely, Lawrence J. Tack-
er, ete.

On the 18th of April, the following text
of a letter of the same date, was sent
lo Tacker: Dear Sir: Your letter of 5
April 1960 with AFR 200-2 inclosed serves
to clarify a point of confusion on our
part. We were not aware that the new
regulation (of 4 September 1959) differed
so much from the old where public rela-
tions policies are concerned. The differ-
ences are reassuring indeed and we shall
take immediate steps to establish liaison
with ATIC with the aim of submitting
our physical evidence for examination.
It is noted that contact with any other
porsons or organizations that may have
faciual data on a UFO or can offer
corroborating evidence is recommended
uader Paragraph 5d and that direct com-
munication with us by ATIC can be
au'horized under Paragraph 6a,

Carbon copies of communications to
ATIC from this office will be currently
forwarded to you if you so request.

Consider this letter also as a formal
request for release of information in con-
formance with AFR 200-2, Paragraph 8—
specifically: the details of a UFO incident
al Biggs AFB, El Paso, Texas which
prompted a 7-ling alert on the morning
of 25 March 1960 and the conclusions of
ATIC concerning this incident. Sincerely,
Coral E. Lorenzen, Director. On the 20th
a letter pertaining to the physical evi-
dence was sent to ATIC. The following
is Major Tacker’s answer (he had stress-
cd that we would receive information
throuzh his office): Dear Mrs: Lorenzen:
This is to acknowledge your letters of
18 and 29 April 1960 addressed to this
office and Aecrospace Technical Intelli-
gence Center respectively.

On 25 March 1960, at 1050Z (0350 local),
three airmen standing guard duly on
the ramp at Biggs Air Force Base. sight-
ed an unidentified flying object, The wit-
nesses described the object as flowing

blue-white, approximately the size of a
half-dollar held at arm’s length, round,
and moving at very high speed. The
witnesses all agree that the object left
no tail or trail, but did make a sound
like a child’s top with holes. The object
was reported as moving generally from
WEW to ENE and was in sight approxi-
mately four seconds. The authorities at
Biggs conducted an investigation in ac-
cordance with AFR 200-2, but were un-
able to determine the cause. Analysis of
all the available information points to-
ward this object as being a bolide. The
carly hour which the sighting took place
is probably why there were no other
witnesses {o the incident.

The Aerospace Technical Intelligence
Center is interested in any physical evi-
dence or data which will assist in deter-
mining the cause of a UFO sighting.
Therefore, will you please forward a
sample of the material and technical
report concerning the Ubatuba Beach
case to ATIC for analysis and/or evalua-
tion. Names and specific qualifications
of persons involved should accompany
the report.

-A search of reference material in the
AMC technical library failed to reveal
the name of Mr. Ibrahim Sued, Dr.
Olavo T. Fontes, or any of the persons
mentioned in the article on the incident
carried in the APRO Bulletin.

ATIC files reveal no record of the New
Haven, Connecticut case referenced in
your letter. This case is approximately
seven years old and any information
which could be derived at this late date
would not be reliable. However, I would
suggest that you forward the residual
material for this case to ATIC and ask
them to analyze il. Sincerely, Lawrence
J. Tacker.

It is obvious at this time that the Air
Force wants those fragments. There is
no doubt, also, that they would find some
way of burying their findings or finding
some way to clufter up the evidence
with extraneous comments and evalua-
tions which would tend to discredit or
cast doubt upon the conclusions of Dr.
Fontes and the APRO staff.

Our informants at Biggs Air Force Base
and in El Paso indicate that the object
mentioned in our letter to Tacker, had
maneuvered over the El Paso area; that
it had hovered over the alert facility,
and stayed long enough to badly frighten
several individuals, The sound was not
that of a bolide or any other kind of
meteor. Even the description of the object
in Major Tacker's letter does not fit a
meteor. Yet the evidence has been ‘“‘in-
terpreted”” to indicate that the object
was a meteor! On the basis of this, can
we entrust our precious bits of pure mag-
nesium to the U. S, mails? Can we afford,
after the years of work we have put
into the physical evidence, to entrust it
to the men who would label the Biggs

AFB object a bolide meteor?

The Director, Mrs. Lorenzen, held a
Secret clearance when she was employed
by the Air Force at Holloman, If the
Air Force wants the magnesium badly
enough, they might try an offer to furnish
transportation for the Director and two
other APRO scientific people to ATIC
or any testing lab for an analysis. The
Air Force claims it spends $10,000 on each
investigation—here is one well worth the
money. Reputable scientists have already
paved the way.

During the foregoing chain of events,
the Lorenzen home telephone, which is a
private line, was repeatedly under sur-
veillance. Calls between Mr. Lorenzen
at his place of employment at Holloman
and Mrs. Lorenzen at the APRO office,
were monitored. When the final physical

evidence release went out to the press -

wires on the 18th of March, an editor

at Kansas City “‘killed” it, and it went .

out without the AP byline. UPI waited
until the 22nd (probably checking with
science editors), then released it world-
wide. The physical evidence story was
accepted well abroad, but in the U.S.,
editors refrained from too wide a use
of it, and it fell flat. We have labeled
this attitude “Brinksterism’ because peo-
ple have a tendency to want the facts
until they are confronted with them—
they come to the brink of the truth and’
then turn their backs. ’

Most researchers would scream ‘‘cen-
sorship”’—we have said in the past and
will reiterate at this time—there could
have been censorship, but we just don’t
know. A certain fear of confirmation of
the unknown element seems to play a
big part in this; perhaps we will never
know just how much.

We do know this: On the 22nd of March,
Mrs. Lorenzen was informed by a friend
that her 201" file at Holloman had been
opened. A 201" is the personal, confi-
dential file of civil service employees
which contains the results of information
gathered by intelligence and security offi-
cers pertaining to personality, morality,
political convictions, police record, if
any, etc., and it is upon the basis of this
information that a security clearance is
issued.

Someone was vitally interested in per-
sonal information about the Director,
and that person had to be in the mili-
tary, because only a qualified officer or
security agent has access to that file.,
Was someone trying to find something
to use as a weapon against Mrs. Lorenzen
and APRO? It is highly unlikely that

we shall ever have the answer to that =~

one, ecither, We can deduce, however,
that we will not receive any large amount
of cooperation from Major Tacker—his
hands are tied. We will have to “go it
alone,” as it were, for several reasons.
The members are invited to draw their

(See Physical Evidence, page 8)
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3. The object is net luminous or cloud-
like as in many other UAO photographs.

4. The shutter speed of 1/25 second
used would be enough to “‘stop’’ an object
going several hundred miles an hour if
it were far enough from the camera, as
this one was. It is interesting to note
that the outline of the object is quite
sharp in views Nos. 2 and 3 where it
had slowed down, but slightly blurred in
Nos. 1 and 4 where it was going at.a
higher speed and the shutter setting was
rnot high enough to freeze the motion.
Greater distance would also contribute
to this effect.

5. I can see no evidence of a vapor
{rail or luminous halo as reported by
some witnesses. This may not have reg-
istered due to overexposure of the sky
background.

6. Had the shuiter been set at 1/230
or 1/500 second, we would have had a
much sharper set of pictures; however,
Mr. Barauna should be complimented on
his aleriness and self-control in getting
photographs as good as these under such
trying conditions. Had he stopped to re-
set his shutter speed, we might not have
had this valuable evidence at all.

UAO SIGHTINGS AT THE

ISLAND OF TRINDADE
By Oravo T. Fonrrs, M.D.
Part 111
The Official Attitude of the Brazilian
Navy. Official Documenis and Addi-
tional Evidence Abou! the JAO Pho-
tos Taken from the NE “Almirante
Saldanha®’

* e -

At the beginning of this report, it was
said that the UAO photographs taken at
the Island of Trindade were proven to be
genuine, according to oificial statements.
The first official document supporting
that statement has already been present-
ed to the reader; it was the Navy secret
memorandum to the House of Represen-
tatives with the answers to the questions
asked by Rep. S. Magalhaes. Two other
official documents shall be presented
now.
The Navy Official Release and
Other Official Statements

On February 22, 1958, under pressure
of public opinion and the press, the
Brazilian Navy Ministry was forced to
issue an official release, admitting for
the first time that a UAO had been
photographed over the Island of Trin-
dade, in the presence of a number of
members from the garrison of the NE
“Almirante Saldanha.” The document
from the Navy Minister’s office was the
following:

“With respeet to ihe nows divulged

through the press insinuating that the
Navy Ministry has attempted to avoid
the publication of facts connected with
the appearance of a strange object over
the Island of Trindade, this office de-
clares that such information is without
basis.

““This Ministry sees no reason fo for-
bid the publication of pictures of said
object, taken by Mr. Almiro Barauna—
who was at the Island of Trindade as a
Navy guest—in the presence of a number
of elements from the NE ‘Almirante
Saldanha' garrison, aboard that ship from
which the photos were taken.

“Evidently, this Ministry cannot make
any statement about the object sighted
over the Island of Trindade, for the
photos do not constitute enough evidence
for such a purpose.” Unquote (Rio de
Janeiro CORREIO DA MANHA, ULTIMA
HORA, February 23; O GLOBO, Febru-
ary 24, etc. Sao Paulo O ESTADO DE
SAQ PAULOQ, February 23, 1958)

That same day, a Navy spokesman
told the press that the authenticity of
the photos taken aboard the NE “Almi-
rante Saldanha’ was now confirmed be-
vond any doubt, and that those who had
rejected them as proof were entirely
wrong. He also stated that the whole
UFO problem was being investigated

/ and, at the end, the Brazilian Navy would

release a decisive report about it. (Rio
de Janeiro CORREIO DA MANHA, Feb-
ruary 23, 1958)

Admiral Gerson de Macedo Soares, the
Navy General Secretary, told the news-
paper O GLOBO that what he knew about
the matter was already in the papers.
He concluded his statement with the fol-
lowing words: “‘I do not see any reason
to doubt the reports of reliable witnesses.
Personally, I believe in the reality of the
flying saucers, even if they come from
another planet.”

Admiral Alves Camera, the Navy Min-
ister, told the U.P. on February 24, “that
he didn’t believe in flyving saucers before,
but after Barauna's photographic evi-
dence he was convinced.” The statement
was made when the Navy Minister was
leaving the Rio Negro Palace, at Petro-
polis, after his weekly meeting with the
President. Minister Alves Camara, talk-
ing with newspapermen, also said that
“the Brazilian Navy has a big secret
which cannot be released, because it can-
not be explained.” He confirmed once
more the authenticity of the pictures
taken from the NE “Almirante Saldan-
ha.” (Credit: Asapress dispatch, of Feb.
24, published in several newspapers)

Com. Paulo Moreira da Silva, in a
new press interview, confirmed his pre-
vious statement that “the mysterious
object seen at Trindade, on January 16,
was not a meteorological balloon.” He
also rejected bluntly the possibility of a
hoax with the following statement:

“I do not wish to discuss the personality

of the photographer who shot the pictures
of the unknown object sighted by many
people of recognized responsibility. I can
state, however, that the photos are au-
thentic, and that the film was developed
on the same occasion, aboard the NE
‘Almirante Saldanha’—and also that the
image of the object on the negatives was
verified, at that same opportunity, by
several officers, not eight days later as
it has been said—thus entirely discarding
any possibility of photographic trick.

“I do not wish to advance my opinion,
stating categorically that I saw a flying
saucer. Yet, I can say that the UFO
seen at the Island of Trindade was not
a weather balloon, neither an American
or Russian guided missile, nor a plane
or a sea-gull, , . .” (Rio de Janciro O
JORNAL, February 26, 1958)

Since the beginning of the “Flying
Saucer” mystery, the attitude of various
governments has been and remains fun-
damentally the same—flying saucers do
not exist. As any scrious researcher on
the subject will admit, there is a deplora-
ble tendency toward secrecy and ridicule.
But good UAO reports cannot be written
off. And sometimes we have something
more than good circumstantial evidence.
In the Trindade case, for instance, we
have an official release and official state-
ments saying that an object was sighted,
that it was a UAO, that it was photo-
graphed in the presence of witnesses,
that the photos are genuine—and that
the object in the photo was not a balloon,
an American or Russian guided missile,
an airplane, or a sea-gull. . . . What
was it?

Com, Bacellar’s Press Release

Captain-of-Corvette Carlos Alberto Ba-
cellar, the C.0. of the Navy Oceano-
graphic Post at the Island of Trindade
from October, 1957, to January, 1958, was
the man who rebuilt the Navy Base, and
also a witness to several of the UAO
sightings reported in this review. On
January 16, 1958, he was aboard the NE
“Almirante Ssldanha” to make his re-
turn trip to Rio. He was contacted by
reporter Joao Martins. In a personal
report, emphasizing the fact that he was
not entitled to speak in the name of the
Navy, he made the following written
declaration (with the approval of the
Navy Ministry) about the UAO sightings
at Trindade:

“1—An unidentified aerial object was
really seen by some people on the deck
of the NE ‘Almirante Saldanha.’ 1 was
not a witness of the sighting beecause, at
that moment, I was inside my cabin;
however, T was called to the deck imme-
diately after the event.

"'2—The fact caused some natural exci-
tation and the subsequent racing of people
to the ship’s deck, attracted by the shouts
of those who sighted the object.

*3—The photographer Almiro Barauna

(See Trindade Sightings, page 6)

1
o



T
;
3
i
]
t

L et e o,

= LA et

NET e =

-l

—— = L

THE A. P. R. O. BULLETIN

p

Page 5

May, 1960 ’ \_‘D

i

PR A N AT

B T e Iy

THE FAMOUS
IGY UAO PICTURES

Reproduced on this page are the four
excellent pictures of a UAO photographed
by photographer Almiro Barauna on 16
January 1958. This is the first time, to
our knowledge, that a resecarch organi-
zation has obtained first copies from the
original negatives, along with indepen-
dent analysis. For the full story, see
Exclusive IGY photo analysis, Page 1,
and Dr. Fontes’ carefully documented
series dealing with these photos in the
January and March 1960 issues, of the
APRO Bulletin, and concluded in this
issue beginning on page 4.

Pl 2 Aadgeels

Photo 1, top left, shows the object ap-
proaching Trindade Island at low speed
from the direction of the sea.

Photo 2, middle page, left, shows the
object at the time it was hehind Galo
Crest.

Photo 3, middle page, right, shows the
object shortly after it made a turn near
Desejado Peak.

The last photo, Photo 4, bottom right,
shows the object flying at high speed
as it leaves the vicinity of the island.

This series is without a doubt the most
detailed, informative group of UAO piec-
tures ever taken. We are indebted to
Dr. Fontes and Joao Martins for their
efforts on our behalf, as well as to the
editor of the magazine O Cruzeiro, for
his cooperation in bringing these pictures
to the field of UAO research.

JETTRAL b 53 4 ST
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Trindade Sightings...
(Continued from page 4)

was on the deck with his camera and,

after the happening, was under a deep

nervous excilation. I stayed at his side

all the time, in order to watch him

develop the film.

‘*4—The film was developed in a photo-
laboratory prepared aboard, when Ba-
rauna was able to get his nerves under
control—about an hour after the incident.

“5—The ATF Captain Jose Teobaldo
Viegas (retired) went with him into the
darkroom, holding a flashlight during the
film’s development, while I waited out-
side.

“6—I1 saw the film immediately after
it was developed, still wet, and—making
2 careful examination—I was able to
determine:

““(a) that the pictures preceding the
sequence connected with the object's
passage corresponded with scenes taken
aboard a few minutes before the inci-
dent;

“(b) that, in the pictures connected
with the sighting, was visible, in different
positions, animage looking like the object
seen later on the copies—with details
which only the enlargements made after-
ward showed more clearly;

“(e¢) and that the two photos lost by
Barauna because he was too nervous,
or because he was pushed by other ex-
cited people around him—showed the sea
and part of the Island’s mountains;

“{d) the negatives referred to were
seen by many people aboard.

“7—Afterwards, in Rio, I called Ba-
rauna (as we had prearranged) and
brought him twice to the Navy Ministry.

“8—I warned Barauna against any pub-
licity about the fact before the proper
permission would be granted, and also
that he would be informed as soon as
the proper authorities decided to author-
ize the publication of the photographs.

“9—The negatives were given by Ba-
rauna to Navy authorities but were later
returned again to him, through myself.
On this occasion, however, I said he was
frec to use the pictures as he wished,
under certain restrictions, for they be-
longed to him.

“10—At my request, and using paper
T had supplied, Barauna prepared six
complete series of the four photos and
sixteen enlargements of details of the
object.

“11—That was the fourth time that
in the forty days preceding the incident
the passage of an ‘unidentified aerial
object’ over the Island of Trindade had
been verified.” Unquotce

The amazing document transcribed
above was printed in the magazine O
CRUZEIRO, of May 3, 1958, It was the
last official release on the UAO incidents
at the Island of Trindade—and also the
best. There is no doubt about the extra-

ordinary significance of such a report,
for the information included in it was
the last piece of evidence we needed to
prove that Barauna's photographs are
genuine—and good enough to show that
UAOs are real, i.c., some type of vehicle
flying through our atmosphere.
Incidentally, the analysis of the photo-
raphs outside the Navy also confirmed
their authenticity. As said before, Ba-
rauna‘s negatives were taken to the
“Cruzeiro do Sul Aerophotogrammetric
Service,” one of the best equipped photo-
laboratories in South America. On the
even of February 22, 1958, Mr. Stefano
(the laboratory’s chief and top photogra-
phy expert), together with a group of
photo technicians, did a careful exami-
nation of the negatives. After several
hours of rigorous tests, the commission
came to the following conclusion: *It

“was established that no photographic

tricks are involved. The negatives are
normal.” This written photo lab report
was signed and sent to the Navy Minis-
try, where it was added to the UFO
Secret Report which was later sent to
the National Security Council. After dis-
cussing the accurate laboratory tests
made in the Navy Photo Reconnaissance
Laboratory and in the aerophotogram-
metric lab, the top secret report empha-
sized that both examinations had proven
that the photos were authentic. On the
hasis of such an evidence, concluded the
report, the sighting of an unidentified
aerial object in the skies of Trindade
could be positively established. But the
available data were not enough to make
sure that the object was, in fact, a flying
saucer—nor they added other elements
to make easy ils identification.

The information above was printed in
the press (Sao Paulo DIARIO DA NOITE,
February 22). The data related with the
photo lab report were rechecked and con-
firmed, but only these.

This ended my investigation of Barau-
na's photographs. It must be pointed out,
however, that the data included in the
preceding paragraphs of this review do
not represent the complete story of the
Trindade affair. Therefore, it is neces-
sary to discuss the details not yet repoxrt-
ed—at least those that might contribute
to a better evaluaion of the whole case.
They will be listed in the following pages.
Trip of Major-General
Thomas Darcy

On February 22, 1958, some of Rio’s
newspapers reported that copies of Ba-
rauna's photos had been sent to the U. S.
to salisfy the request of authorities at
the Pentagon. According fo the informa-
tion, the American embassy at Rio in-
formed the Brazilian government about
the interest they had to study the pic-
tures and to compare them with other
photos they possessed in the U.S. The
Avmed Forces General Stafi, at Rio, had
taken the necessary measures to deliver

immediately the copies requested.

By a curious ‘‘coincidence,”. an un-
expected visitor arrived at Rio a few
days later. He came in a Pan Amecrican
airliner, on February 26. He was Major-
General Thomas Darcy, the USAF rep-
resentative in the Brazil-U. S. A, Joint
Military Commission for Defense. In an
interview with the press, at the Galcao
International Airport, he said:

“The reasons for my visit to Brazil
are connected with several things. One
of them is related with the supply of
airplanes and equipment for Brazilian
anti-submarine defense. On this trip I
am going to discuss with Brazilian mili-
tary authorities several problems of in-
terest to both countries. Also I will make
a visit, of course, to Salvador AF Basec.
I am going to discuss some secret mat-
ters, too.”

The newspapermen then asked for his
opinion about the Trindade sightings. His
answer was the following:

“In the USAF we have a well-estab-
lished viewpoint about flying saucers.
We came to the conclusion that 85 per
cent of these UFOs can be explained as
natural phenomena of atmospheric origin.
Regarding the other 15 per cent—the
mystery still remains, and we prefer to
withhold our opinions on the malter.”
({Rio de Janeiro O GLOBO, ULTIMA
HORA, O JORNAL, etc., February 27,
1958)

Major-General Thomas Darcy, former
Commander of the 22nd Tactical Air Com-
mand, during World War II, has made
several (rips to Brazil in past years fo
discuss military problems with Brazilian
authorities. His last trip, however, was
a surprise. Even the military didn’t ex-
peet it. On the other hand, no one sus-
pected that it might bz connecied with
the Trindade case—despite the reference
to Salvador AFB, the AF Base ncarest
that Island.

The Facts Reported by Members of
the NE “Almirante Saldanha’ Garrison

On February 24, 1958, the NE “Almi-
rante Saldanha’ arrived at Santos, S. P.
Members of the crew were permitted to
visit the town and there, for the first
time, were contacted by the press. Their
declarations were printed in two Sao
Paulo’s newspapers (FOLHA DA TARDE -
and 0 ESTADO DE SAO PAULO, of Feb-
ruary 25), All of them confirmed the
passage of the UAO over the TIsland,
watched by all members of the crew on
the ship’s deck at the time. Several of
them had been eye-witnesss of the event.
A Navy sergeant who refused to tell his
name to the reporters, said that, “during
the three days preceding the arrival of
the ship, many inhabitants of the Island
(including authorities) had spotted the
passage of the ‘object’ several times.
According to their reports, the UAO ap-
peared between 10 and 11:30 a.m. over

(See Trindade Sightings, page 7)
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Trindacle Sightings...
‘(Comi:med from page G)
the ‘Galo Crest,” maneuvered in several
directions, and disappeared into the ho-
rizon—to come back just a few seconds
later. It then moved away at high speed
and was gone. These sightings were in-
{eresting, but the real sensation had been
the incident of January 16, because of
the photographic evidence supporting it."”

In the course of my personal investi-
gation, T asked some friends in the Navy
to verify the sergeant’s story. They said
the reports existed, but had been rejected
due to the observers’ lack of qualifica-
tion and brief duration of the phenomena.
At my request, they also rechecked the
radar report. They confirmed Barauna’'s
report. According to the radar techni-
cians, the ship’s radar set had picked up
a target flying at supersonic speed the
day before Barauna’s sighting, at about
12:05 p.m. The operator had tried to
switeh the set to automatic tracking, but
failed, and the strange body was not
identified. However, as they were not
alerted about flying saucers at that time,
the radar technicians admitted the pos-
sibility of a defect in the set and re-
checked it. They found that everything
was normal.

Another bit of interesting information
was reported by reporter Paulo M. Cam-
pos, writing in the newspaper DIARIO
CARIOCA, of February 23, 1958. He said:

“I am going to tell you something
about the flying saucer sighted at the
Island of Trindade; something not yet
printed in the papers. I cannot vouch for
it, but my source is the best possible.
According to my informant, more than
the sighting of the flying saucer itself,
what really made a deep impression on
the Navy was the report that instruments
I'ke radio transmitters, and apparatus
wi‘h magnetic needles, ceased operating
while the flying object remained in the
Island’s proximity. The Navy decided to
consider this a top-secret faet.”

Inside Navy eircles, it was not possible
{0 obtain any information of the fact.
All sources interviewed by the press re-
fused to confirm or ¢eny the information.
At my request, my Navy friends also
rechecked it. They confirmed the data
but failed to get further details concern-
ing the event.

The UAO Sighted from the
Tow Ship "“Tridente’”

In an interview with the press, Admiral
Gerson Macedo Soares, the Navy General
Secretary, confirmed the fact that a
Navy officer had sighted a flying saucer
near the coast of Espirito Santo (State).
Com, Pedro Moreira, the public relations
officer for the press, confirmed the infor-
mation too. It is believed that this sight-
ing was made from aboard. the Navy
tow ship “Tridente,”” and that the ship's
C.0. as well as several officers and

sailors were the witnesses. (Rio de Ja-
neiro CORREIO DA MANHA, February
25, 1958)

I must confess that I was not impressed
when I read this information in the pa-
pers. Those who saw the first part of this
review know that, in the beginning of
my investigation of the Trindade cases,
1 had received information about a sight-
ing involving a Navy tow ship. Yet, ac-
cording to my source, that ship was the
“Triunfo” and the incident had occurred
on January 2, 1958, near the coast of
Bahia. That press report was not cor-
rect, I thought.

However, just a few days later, I saw
again the name ““Tridente.” This time it
appeared in an official document, the
Congressional inquiry approved by the
House of Representatives (item 8) on
February 27, which was already tran-
scribed in the first part of this review.
Now I was impressed. I rechecked my
information but got the same answers.
Yet something was wrong. I was inclined
to believe that the discrepancy might be
due to a confusion of names, for the
lack of a better explanation. It was then
that I was startled by some amazing
information. Someone told me that the
C.0. of the ““Tridente” had sighted the
UAO, near the Espirito Santo coast, on
the same day of the Barauna case—i.e.,
on January 16, 1958. The same source
confirmed the other sighting too.

The next thing was to try to get more
data on the “Tridente” sighting. I en-
listed the aid of several friends and we
tried to get an account of other UAO
sightings on the Espirito Santo coast that
day. One of them was lucky and got a
report about a similar object in that area.
The sighting had been witnessed by a
physician, Dr. Ezio Azevedo Fundao
(Director, Surgery Service, Pedro Er-
nesto Hospital, Rio de Janeiro), his fa-
ther, wife, and two sisters. Dr. Fundao
has a summer house on the Beach Coast
(Villa Velha), Espirito Santo, half an
hour out from Vitoria (the State capital).
That night, the doctor’'s car was parked
on a small road beside the house, and
was hit and practically destroyed by a
truck. The whole family was awakened
by the crash and went outside to see
what had happened.

When everything was normal again, at
2:30 a.m., one of the doctor’s sisters
called the attention of the others to a
bright object that hovered over the Rocky
Islands, at a distance of about 2400 feet
from the observers and about 600 feet
above the ground. It remained there,
motionless, for about 40 minutes. It fin-
ally disappeared when it was covered by
thick, low-flying clouds that moved across
the sky.

That object’s shape was exactly the
same as the UAO to be photographed
over the Island of Trindade less than
twelve hours later. Its spherical hody

appearcd to be translucent, with a silvery
light. The ring looked like aluminum
shining in the sunlight. The UAQ's size
was, according to the observers, like
that of a “Convair’ plane. A becam of
light was emitled from its bottom pro-
jecting toward the sea below. This search-
light was steady and moved from one
side to another.

The objeet was loo bright to be a
lighted balloon. As the night was clear,
its outlines were sharply defined against
the sky. It was obviously a craft of some
sort. It couldn't be an airplane because
airplanes don’t hover in one spot, and
it was not atmospheric phenomena. The
observers heard no sound and they were
away from all city noises.

By a coincidence or not, the beacon
at the Barra lighthouse, located at the
same area, collapsed at the hour the
UAO was sighted to reappear only fifty
minutes later. By another coincidence,
the Navy tow ship “Tridente’”” was within
about two miles of the site that same
night. From the ship’s deck, the C.O.
had spotted the object at approximately
{he same time.

We talked to Dr. Fundao about his
sighting. He emphasized the fact that he
didn’t know what the UAO was, but he
was sure it was something he had never
seen before. . . . He was also interviewed
by reporter Joao Martins, and his report
was published in the magazine O CRU-
ZEIRO, of June 7, 1958.

The Last Sightings on the
island of Trindade

After the happenings of January 16,
1958, the Brazilian Navy decided to set
up special photographic equipment at
Trindade. This camera project included
automatic cameras with telephoto lenses
which were te be kept ready to photo-
graph any new UAOQO appearance, at any
time. Technicians handling the equip-
ment were to stay at their posts day and
night—each man being substituted by
another every four hours.

I don’t know if the system worked as
planned. But I was informed that a UAQ
reappeared over the Island on March 7,
1958, in the daytime. One of the observers,
a Navy doctor, tried to photograph it
with his camera—but nothing appeared
on the negatives.

The UAO was sighted again on October
5, 1958, at 8 p.m. It was described as a
luminous ohject, round-shaped and cn-
circled by a bright, red glow, moving
across the sky at high speed. It hovered
over the Island for about 4 minutes, then
it moved away toward the northeast at
tremendous speed and was gone. The
senlry who saw it was so scared that
he forgot to alert the garrison while the
object was stiil in sight.

These sightings were not published in
the Brazilian press.

(Sce Trindade Sightings, page 8)
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(Continued from page 7)
The UAO Sightings at the
Island of Fernando Noronha

Fernando Noronha is another small
rocky island in the South Atlantic Ocean
between the Brazilian coast and the Afri-
can continent. Unlike Trindade, it is
placed along the route of the U. S, guided
missiles fired from Cape Canaveral in
the direction of Ascension Island. Be-
cause of this strategic position, the island
was selected two years ago as the place
for a U.S. guided missile and satellite
tracking station. According to the mili-
tary treaty between the two countries,
the instruments sct up over the island
to track high, fast-moving objects—the
guided missiles and satellites—were to
be operated by American crews and Bra-
zilian technicians working together. As
soon as the tracking station was built,
it was put into operation together with
the already existing tracking system net.

Recently one of the Brazilian techni-
cians working at the tracking station
arrived at Rio to see his family. He
stayed here for a few weeks. He told
us a startling story. He said that the
first UAO sightings over Fernando No-
ronha occurred the same day the station
had begun its operations.

An ICBM had been fired from the
Atlantic Missile Range in Florida, and
as it roared up into the stratosphere and
fell back to earth, the crews at Fernando
Noronha were ready to record its flight.
Suddenly a target was picked up on the
radar screens. It was the rocket and the
station started to track it. But a few
seconds later another “‘rocket’” was spot-
ted moving along the same trajectory.
Something was wrong. They had heen
called to track one rocket but the radars
had picked up two rockets. A radio mes-
sage was immediately sent asking for
an explanation., There was no explana-
ton, was the answer, for only one mis-
sile had been fired. The radar operators
said that the second target looked real,
too, but it was ‘“‘explained away” as a
reflection caused by an inversion layer.

The “‘ghost rockets” continued to be
picked up, however, almost every time
a guided missile was being tracked by
the station. Soon it became clear that
those fast-moving objects chasing the
guided missiles were real too. They were
sighted by every person at Fernando
Noronha. Sometimes only one was spot-
ted, sometimes they came in pairs, some-
times a whole formation including three
or four unknowns was sighted. Some of
them followed the rocket they were
tracking duving the whole tracking se-
quence. But others changed course and
went in another direction. And a few
even stopped for a time over the.Island.
Most of them were round-shaped and
their performances showed clearly that

they were UAOs—not guided missiles.

Besides the UAOQ activity connected
with the guided missile tests, UAOs
began to appear over the Island at al-
most regular intervals—*‘‘as if they were
patrolling the area,” concluded our in-
formant. He also said that all those
sightings were classified, and that his
name could not be used in conneetion
with the information if it was published.

* * *

In the light of the information about
the UAO activities in the area of Fer-
nando Noronha, it is not difficult to guess
what they were doing over Trindade.
Taking into account all of the evaluated
data, it is evident that these UAOs are
spy-ships. They are keeping every guided
missile test range, satellite launching
base, and tracking station around this
world under close watch all the time.
When they detected signs of activity on
Trindade they started an investigation to
discover what we were doing there. For
some time, they probably suspected the
new base to be somehow connected with
our rocket and satellite tests. As soon as
the obvious peaceful character of the
meteorological studies performed there
was established, the UAOs abandoned the
survey—to concentrate on more impor-
tant targets. Fernando Noronha is one
of these targets. The UAOs arc still be-
ing sighted there.

These conelusions are based on the
facts—all of the facts related with the
remarkable sequence of military UAO
reports included in this review, You may
accept or recject them. Yet, you cannot
deny the fact that the evidence presented
is more than enough to prove that UAOs
are real objects. And if you are one of
those who accuse UAQO researchers of
creating the mystery of the flying sau-
cers, believing what they want to believe

and rejecting all other possibilities, IT-
have for ycu the unbiased opinion of

Colonel Joao Adil de Oliveira, former
head of the Brazilian Air Force investi-
gation of these strange objects in the
sky. If you cannot meet his challenge,
then you shall have to revise your ideas
on the subject. In an interview with the
press, on February 28, 1958, he said the
words that will be used to close this
review, They are:

“It is impossible to deny any more the
existence of flying saucers at the present
time. Regarding the Trindade photo-
graphs, I see no reason for dishelief,
neither to admit that the photographer
would dare to take the risk of a public
exposé of his fraud (if it was the case)
nor to think that reporter Joao Martins—
an expert on the matter and a respon-
sible newspaperman—would accept the
photographic evidence for publication
without a previous examination to test
its authenticity, And, to close the issue,
the Navy High Command itself released

an official note confirming the photos’
authenticity. .

“The flying saucer is not a ghost from
another dimension, or a mysterious dra-
gon. It is a fact confirmed by material
evidence. There are thousands of docu-
ments, photos, and sighting reports dem-
onstrating its cxistence. For instaace,
when I went to the AF High Command
to discuss the flying saucers I called for
ten witnesses—military (AF officers) and
civilians—to report their evidence about
the presence of flying saucers in tihe
skies of Rio Grande do Sul, and vver
Gravatai AFB; some of them had seen
UFOs with the naked eye, others with
high powered optical instruinents., Jor
more than two hours the phenomenon
was present in the sky, impressing the
sclected audience: officers, engineers,
technicians, cte.

“How to doubt?" Unquote (Rio dc Ja-
neiro O GLOBO, Feb. 28, 1958.

Physical Evidence...

(Continued from page 3)
own conclusions about the “behind the
scenes’ happenings from 9 March to the
present. The foregoing material is food -
for thought.

AN OPEN LETTER
TO APRO MEMBERS

For the past eight and one-half years
I have served as director for APRO. 1
have done my best at all times, and
would like to call upon the members to
lend their unstinted support during the
present emergency brought about by the
relocation of headquarters to Tucson,
Arizona.

The main present objective, besides
the moving itself, is to gdther another
working staff to handle the large corre-
spondence, This will take time, of course,
and during the time that it will take to
acquaint myself with newspapers and
printing offices in the new location, spare
time will be at a premium, Tueson will
present new problems, mainly those en-
tailing commuting from the APRO office
to printing offices, etc.

There will be no July 1960 issue of the
Bulletin because of this move, but the
Bulletin will either be issued at a later
date or coupled with a future issue. I
feel at present, however, that the Sep-
tember issue will be on schedule; at
Icast I sincerely hope so. If not, I hope
the members will try to undersland.

Our next issue will outline the step-hy-
step military reconnaisance of the earth
which has been carried out by the UAO
in the past 13 years. Il will also deal
with possible cxplanation for the diver-
gent types of UAO crews.

—~Coral Lorenzen, Dircclor.
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29 August 1960

Dear Mrs. Golden:

Your telegram of 16 August 1960, addreascd to the Seeretary
of State, conecerning a Brazilian UPO picture has been referred to
this Office.

For your information, the U. S. Navy evaluated this picture
as a hoax gnd official records indicate this was triek photography.
Ho witnesses were ypresent while the photographer developed the
negatives.

Sincerely,

LAWRENCE J. TACEKER

Lt. Colonel, USAT

Public Information Division
Offlee of Information

Mrs. Catherine Carter Golden
334 Thrall Street
Cincinnati 20, Ohio
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Honorable Gordon H, Scherer
House of Representatives
Washingten 23, D.C,

Deaz Mr. Scherer:?

In your letier of 24 August you forwarded a copy cf a
letter fremm Mre, Catherine Carter Golden of Cilacinnati in which
she diecussed the subject of unidentificd flying objects. Mrs. Golden
seecmed particularly intercsoted in the pictures taken in Brasil and
shown oa the Dave Carroway show,

The photograph referred to by Mrs. Golden was taken by a
free-lance photographer, Contrzary to her information, this photo-
graph wag net develeped in the presence of persong other than the
photographar,

Mrs. Golden has corrcoponded with the Department of State .
and the Air Force for scme time oa the general subject of unidenti-
fied flying objects. The Department of the Air Force has primary
responoibility for inveotigating information pertaining to UFQ's,
Mreo. Golden recently contacted the State Deopartment oa tho subject
of the alleged Brazillaa sighting and ker query wae referred to the
Departmesnt of the Alr Force wkoze reply is attached. This Agency
has no informaticz cther than that which kas already been provided
the Air Force oa this sublect.

Sizcerely,

SICNED

Joka S, Warzs:
l.eglolative Counsal

Enclosure

Distribution:"

Orig & 1 - Addressece
1- 081
1 - Leg, Counsel - subject
1 - Leg. Counsel - ckrono

-
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July 23, 1958
Mp. ¥, Gordon Allen
Tavio K-GAT!
Salemi, Grapon

Boar ¥r. Allen

Wa are plested to asknmiladge yous lsiter of July 12
in which vou dAnquired abiout United Frees ghotey of a
UFC over Trinidad.
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Here is the reproduction of the United Press photo and certainly is avail-
zble to the US AIR FORCE. It then appears that the AIR FORCE wzs not
keeping faith the tax payers who ioot the bill. Placing its faith in the SAC
massive retaliation is 2 macawbre JORE which gomeday may find the US
at the morcy of the nation on this planet that zolves the problem of ELEC-
TRICAL FLIGHT. Certiinly "scre-cne' alzcady has.
HERE IS THE ANSWER TO THE AIR FORCE "‘COVER-UP" GIVEN TO UPFL.

SALEM---LEBANON AND SALEM DROADCASTER W. GCRDON ALLEN
TODAY ACCUSED THE U.S. AIR FORCE --I¥ TLESE WORES--"OF WILL
FULLY DUPING THE U-S TAX PAYER BY IT5 PERIODIC DPENIAL OF
UNIDENTIFIED FLYING OBJECT DIENOMINA",

A REPORT FROM THE AIR FORCE { guated zbavo] RELEASED TODAY
SAYS THERE ARE "NO AIR FOCRCE DOCUMENTS WIlICH PROVE THE
EXISTENCE OF FLYING SAUCERS CR SHOW THAT THE EARTH I5 BE-
OBSERVED, VISITED; OR THREATENED BY MACHINES FROM OTHER
PLANETS". '

ALLEN--WERHO IS PRESIDENT OF RADRIO 5TATION ¥
KGAL IN LEBANON SAYS HE HAG INVITLED THE pZ
REPRESENATIVES TO HIS OFFICE TO SEE WHAT HE DI
"SOME OF THE BEST PICTURES. OF FLVING SAUCERS IMN

1+
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THE AIR FORCE REPORT ADMITS THAT IT HAS SEEN UNABLE TO EX-
PLAIN 21 REPORTS O}' UNIDENTIFIED FPLYING OLI RS DURING THE

lJ .‘.!0?."{‘—?‘. ZHNDED SULY 35T,
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1/THE AIR FORCE REPORT ADMITS TH

Here is the reproduction of the United Fress photo and certainly is avails )
able to the US AIR FORCE, It iken appcars that the AIR FORCE was not 1
keeping faith the tax payers who fool the bill. Placing its [aith io the SAC
mmassive Tetaliaticn is a macawbre JOKE which gomeday may {ind the US !
at the mcrey of the nation on this plansct that =elves the prumc... of ELEC-
TRICAL FLICHT. Certainly "sarae-oua" alzeady has. =
HERE IS THE ANSWER TO THE AIR FORCE "COVER-UF" GIVEN TO UFL.

SALEM---1LEBANON AND SALEM DNRUADCASTER W, GORDON ALLEN
TODAY ACCUSED THE U.8. AlL :'O"L‘:” ==ID Tk WORDS--" OF WILL
FULLY DUPING THE U-S TAX FAYER BY IT5 PERIODIC DENIAL OF
UNIDENTIFIED FLYING OBIECT B4 —'\O‘t ENA"Y,

A REPORT FRCOM THE AIR FOGRCE { cuoted above) RELEASED TODAY
SAYS THERE ARE "NO AiR FCRCE DO" IMENTS WITICH PROVE THE
EXISTENCE OF FLYING SAUCXRS OR SIHOW THAT THE EARTH IS BE
QOBSERVED, VISITED, OR THR f.‘LT SNED BY MACHINES FROM OV HE'{
PLANETS".

ALLEN--WZHO IS R:.S D}I\T OF RALIO STATION KGAY IN SALEM AND
KGAL IN LEBANON SAYS HE EAS INVITED THE AIR FORCE TO SEND
REPRESENATIVES TO HIS OFFICE TO SEE WHAT HE DISCR I BED AS
:S'O.\-'EE OF THE BEST PICTURZES CF FLYING SAUCERS 1N EXISTENCE. "
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New Genuine UFO Photographs: Important picture taken at the mid-Atlantic island of
Trinidad (Brazil) on January 16, 1958, by photographer on IGY vessel, certified
by Brazilian Navy officials as not faked. Ralph Benn of Los Angeles takes movie

(1:33/ of paired UFOs December 1 (similar to Tremonton film) and gets decent treatment

from Air Force (from Max Miller's Saucers), Famous 1953 movie taken in Port
Moresby, New Guinea, unearthed and published by Australian investigators: shows
right-angle maneuvers.




Photographic evidence tewards the roality of UFlyirg Saucers" in

196061 was once again on the increase, The Brasilian Navy end Brezilian
Congrésg re-confirmed postive proof tuat the "Szucers Exist" in 1960, when

it confirmed the existence of photographs taken of 2 UFO noar the Island

of Trindade Aboard the IGY Ship" Almirante Saldenha® by photographer Almiro
Barauné in January, 1958. This event was confirmed by hundreds of ercw members
aboard the ship and by many of the natives on shore. Brazil still remained
the only country in the world that officially recorgnizes the existence of

"flying saucers" in 1960-61.
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Cammentss

a) No record of anyone "seeing" the objects,

b) Fhotos hazy with no detail,

¢) Denied by Brazilian Navy, What officials???

d) No record of Radar reports, ‘
(If there were subsequent reports how do they know these were the same objects?)

@) "IF" his case is based on these suprositions then it surely falls apart s b2cause
1. The photos were not genuine,. 2., Noone saw the UFO that Barauna supposedly
thotographed, =

£) The photos were never a "Top Secreb" subject, having been relcased o the press

almost immediately, (?) And if “top secret! surely this must be called & breach

of security etCieao

g Some reason for authenticity, end if so many people "saw" it, name CNE,

Developad in the dark room ALONE by Baraunaof ./—«/ [fols co |

i) The photos were submitted but analysis revealed them to be fakes,

j% No longer "top secret!, only "Offieial use only", conshitube

k

—

Nobe the official Brazilian Navy announcement " The photographs do not ZF#gévy/

sufficient pmo_fooan-o

What WitneSSeSocono

The photos were never "authenticated'by the Brazilian Navy, In fact they made

efforts to supress them,

n) 1, False, 2, False, 3, Becouse 1 & 2 are false, L. False 5. True, and the Navy knew
they were not real, 6, Falwe, probally being analyized and the ship didnit get to
Barzil for almost a monthy % (?) 8. (?)

og Poor Brazilian Navy, Just like the USAF, withholding the "factsY,esee(THEY say)
This doesn't say anything about the Saldahana photos. Only thet UFO's exist, and they

do, We get about 500 a year, including photos, Unfortunately none of the UFO

reports are "flying Saucers¥ from Outer Space.

q) This conflicts with our information.

rg This is the "theodolite" observation, Vho checked Venus??? Three hours.

Again, no duration and no "feel" for altitude,. 1/2 degree of arc????

t) Almos ALL esential elements (facits) for analysis missing, Duration, mammer of
disappearance, flight path, mamuverability, how was the altitude determined, etcs.

u) Sea gull... Meteor??? 4/C almost anything form this limited data,

v) The one of a few seccnds could be anything, refiection, light, meteorees.

The wecong has some of the characteristics of a star or planet bub no positional
date is included, Also missing is the WX data ebtc ebcgeo

w) Sounds like the same as the other sighting, Venus again? And there are mumerous
reasons for the transmitter to go dead, Like the battery or malfunebtion of any
number of parts, Was the receiver working?777

March 1960

a) Disagrees with the ONI Report,

b; Navy didn't say so publicly,

¢) Official Navy Statement, No officer or sailor from the NE ’fAlmirante Saldahanat
witnessed the event, ) 7

d) Big dealsece It's nob a balloon, or missile, It's also not a cloud, nob a meteor,
not a plane, not a planeb, not & sundog, not the kitchen sink, and not even a
flying saucer (Sorry)oeo

May 1960

a) Note that Hopf isn't saying a thing, since he didn't analize the negatives.

b) Stated that pictures were taken, did not that Saucer was sighted or that photos
wers genuine, s 3/

c% Navy says that there is not enough evidénce, Does this ssy they are real?

e) Keyhoe tactic, camitting names and lending Y“alr" to authenticity,

f) Goody, one more saucer "believer", unless he is being quoted out of contextiee

g) Still not saying that the photos were genuine,

hg What winesees , and what proofese '

i) Scme set=-up. One of the few who "claim®vito have observed the object helped develpp

the filmg
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AFCIN-Li2x /Maj Friend/amc/69216/typed 27 July 60 1 AUG 1960

ONI Information Peport (Flying Saucar Photographed from Almirante
Saldanha)

SAFUI~2C (1/Coi Tacker)

l. Attacied are co'u. g of the CHNI Infermation E-:eport, subject:
Wprazil - kavy - Tly m,j; Saucer Photographed from Alnirante Saldanna,”
dated 11 Harch 1253. This report was request *cl by L/Col Tacker of
SAMUI-3d on 26 July 1960.

2. Thls report is unclassified. The report is cn a standard Havy
form with Confidential stamps; however, the word “unclassified" has
been typed zcross the classification box by the office of origin.

R THe COMMANDIER:

“CHILIP G. EVANS 1 Atch:
Colonel, USAP y NI Info Rph, dtd 11 Mar 58

Deputy for Science and Compenenis

COORDINATION:
- AFCIN- m.z;(?@’ﬁw }Wc«, Datez? /,..e.Léa
AFCIN-LE2 MW, M Datem%g b
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Encl:
o .

(1) Set of L Brazilian Navy photographs of subject

1) L‘ f/
INFORMATION REPORT *
OFFICE OF NAVAL INTELLIGENCE 39-58 ,
Ziizli{'lN{;:’eﬁgAE?SB | OPNAV FORM 3820-2 (REV. 5-5 T i‘jfa ?‘f_at}zg%“-lg 58
U8, Naval Attaché, Rio de|Janeiro Pross i b it
SUBJECT .
. FRAZIL -~ Navy - Flying Saucer Photographed from ALMIRANTE SALDANHA
BRIEF (FOR REPORTS OF MORE THAN ONE PAGE, ENTER CAREFUL SUMMARY) IE'\I NQ 9600°

A

NOTE: THIS DOCUMENT CONTAINS INFORMATION AFFECTING THE NATIONAL DEFENSE OF THE UNITED STATES WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE

3
P o
7

ESPIONAGE LAWS, TITLE 18, U, S. C., BECTIONS 793 AND 794. THE TRANSMISSION OR THE REVELATION OF ITS CONTENTS IN AFMY MANNER

TO AN UNAUTHORIZED PERSON IS PROHIBITED BY LAW. REPRODUCTION OF THIS MATERIAL IN ANY FORM, BY OTHER THAN DEFENSE
»

ACTIVITIES IS NOT AUTHORIZED EXCEPT BY SPECIFIC APPROVAL OF THE CHIEF OF NAVAL OPERATIONS (ONI;}

Announcement. On 21 February 1958, two of the leading newspapers

in Rio de Janeiro printed photographs showing alleged flying saucer
photographed from Brazilian naval ship, ALMIRANTE SALDANHA, at approxi-
mately midday on 16 January 1958 while the ship was anchored off Trindade
Island some 600 miles east of Rio de Janeiro. The ship at the time was
engaged in research as part of Brazilian Navy participation in the Inter-
national Geophysiecal Year.

2. Photographer. The photographs themselves were taken by a free lance
photographer, Almiro Barauna, using his Rolleiflex camera set at speed
125., lens opening 8, and were developed in a laboratory in ALMIRANTE
SALDANHA., This gentleman has a long history of photographic tridkshots
and is well known for such items as false pictures of treasure on the
ocean floor. Another time he prepared a purposely humorous artiecle,
published in a magazine, entitled "A Flying Saucer Hunted Me at Home",
using trick photography. Barauwna, after the release of his latest
"flying saucer" photographs, told the press that the Navy secret service .
had interrogated him for four hours concerning his photos.
were projected in.large size on a2 screen. If there was any trick, the
gigantic projection would have revealed it.
of the Estado~-Maior; the Chief of the Secret Service,; the senior officer
present said to me, 'I am going to ask you a few questions. Don't be

] - DOWNGRADED y R P ILT AV AL ‘;5"
ORDER PEOTOS BY ONI KOS. 1322108 TERU 1322111, DECTASSIFIED AFTEm 15 SoAng

"The negatives

After questioning by officers

THIS REPORT CONTAINS UNPROCESSED INFORMATION. PLANS AND/OR POLICIES SHOULD NoT BE EvoLVED orR mMonld(Bd)sqlELR oS 368, 84k1s oF THIS REPORT.
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INFORMATION REPORT DOD DIR 5200 1p

DECLASSIFIED AFTER 15 megé .

JDPNAV FORM 3B20-2°(C) IREV. 6-58)

- A1 U.S. Naval Attaché, Rio| 39-58 11 March 1958

‘offended because I don't doubt the authenticlty of your photos but I need

to hear from you. If you were going to meke a flying saucer appesr on

‘a negative, how would you proceed?’ Comandante, I am an able photo-
graphner specialized in trick photography but not one would withstand

close and accurate examination.®

3. Brazilisn Navy Stand. Immediately after the photographs of the
flying saucer were publicized, the Brazilian Navy refused to make any
official statement confirming or denying the incident. However, proofs
from the original negatives were sent to the other armed forces and to
the President via an officer-messenger who related the complete story.
According to the press, the narration so impressed Mr. Kubitschek that

he became convinced of the veracity of the happening.

On 2l February, three days after the photos were first published
in the press, the Navy Ministry finally made an official statement: oy
"With reference to the reports appezring in the press that the Navy
is opposed to divulge the facts concerning the appearance of a strange
object over Trindade Island, this Cabinet declares that such information
has no basis. This Ministry has no motive to impede the releage of
photographs of the referred to object teken by Mr. Almiro Baraunay who
was at Trindade Island at the invitatiocn of the Navy, and in the¢ presence
of a large number of the crew of ALMIRANTE SALDANHA from whose deck the
photographs were taken. Clearly, this Ministry will not be able to
make any pronomncement concerning the object seen because the photo-
graphs do not constitute sufficient proof for such purpose.W

li. Statements of SATLDANHA Personnal. On the morning after the photos
of the flying saucer were published in the press ( February 22),; the
ATMIRANTE SALDANHA departed Rio to continue its mission in connectionn
with the IGY. Two days later, however, the ship docked zt Santos
(February 21} for voyage repa%rs and this was the first chance that -
newspapermen had an opportunity to interview officers and men aboardes
The Assistant Naval Attache was in Santos at this time in mmml connectilon
with the visit of USCCC WESTWIND (Alusna Rio IR 36-58 of 10 March) and
had an opportunity to visit aboard. The commanding officery Capitzo-de-~
Mar-e=Guerra (CAPT) Jose Santos Saldanha da Gama, had not seen the
object and was noncommittal. The executive officer also had not seen it
but, arriving shortly thereafter, had formed the opinion that those on
de¢k had seen it. The captain had reported that his secretary, a ICDR,
had gseen it but this officer when personally questioned abolided discussw
ing the matter. Later, it was learned that the photographer was
accompanied to the dark room by an officer who waited ocutside the door
while Barauna developed the negatives alcne.

At the time of the offieial visit of the commanding officer of
WESTWIND to ALMIRANTE SALDANHA, Captaii Saldanha da Gama freely dis-
cussed the flying saucer and showed the origirmal proofs to the callers

o

‘- . i v 11 im o 5 _
but g%aln, did not commit himself T UNCLASS[Fl'E_
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UNCLASSIFIED

| INFORMATION REPORT

OPNAV FORM 3820-2 (C) IREV. 6.55)

.| FROM REPORT NO. : DATE

U.S. Naval Attaché, Rio| 39-58 11 March 1958

5. Publicitv. The press reports after the publication of the photo-
graphs covered a great deal of newspaper spacg for about a week, tending
to prove or disprove the authenticity of Barauna's photographs. DIARIO
CARIOCA reported that personnel of SALDANHA were under rigid orders of
silence, O GLOBO published a story with photographs by photographer,
Jean Manzon, of flying saucers (china) taken at Cabo Frio,

Federal Depuby Sergio Magalhaes sent a note to the Navy Ministry
on 27 February protesting the Navy's fallure to secure sworn stabtements
of witnesses, "For the first time in flying saucer history, the
phenomenon was attended by large numbers of persons belonging to =z
military force which give these latest photographs an official stamp.
Threats to national security require greater official attention and
actiony™ said the Deputy. In the middle of all the publicity, other
nfiying saucer® sighting reports came out including a naval officer who
saw a flying saucer a month before sighting from SALDANHA off the coast
of Espirito Santo, CO and crew of ATA TRIDENTE saw flying saucer
several days before SALDANHA sighting but kept information secret.

DOWNGRADED
AT 8 YEAR-TNT "
SIFIED AF%.%‘,W, NTERVALS,
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NFORMATION REPORT

'PNAV FORM. 3820-2 (C) [REV. 6-585)

o] ‘Y FROM | 5 6= . REPORT No. ‘- Tf ;T DATE s i
“-‘-’ U.S. Naval Attaché,' Rio ' 39-58 11 March 1958

Preparing Officer's Comments:

1. Most flying saucer stories are not worth wasting much time or -
efforc, but this story apparently substantidted by official Navy
photographs taken in the presence of large number of Navy personnel
under closely controlled and almost ideal circumstances should have
absolutely proved the existence of an unidentified fixipg object.
Unfortimately, further investigation provided only frustration at every
turning. A number of Brazilian Navy officers profess to believe the
stﬁgy implicitly but whether they have more information than we is
uniknowin, -

¥ d

2. There appear to be only &vo eﬁbianafions for thié peculiar incident:

{a) Some overwhleming power has told the Brazilian Naw¥y not to
officlally verify this incident (which they should easily be able to do,
if it occurred) nor to deny it (which they should easily be able to do,
if it is a fake). I personally do not believe that anyone has told the
Brazilian Navy to keep quiet about it because there has been no hint of
such suppression in either Brazilian or U.S. circlesj and also because
I doubt their control of the individual officers and men is good enough
to hold the line. . :

{b) The whole thing is a fake publicity stunt put on by a croocked
photographer and the Brazilian Navy fell for it. This seems like the
most likely considering Brazilian's love for sensationalism and gossip,
their well knoun propensity for never lettémgthe truth stand in the way
of a good story, and general bureaucratic inefficiency.

%, 1In addition, the photographs furnished by the Brazilian Navy are
wnconvineing., Details of the '‘land are extremely sharp but the dise

is hazy and has little contrast and shows no shadow effect. - It also
appears that the object was inverted in photograph 2 compared to 1 and
3. Also the papers have mentioned extremely high velocifies and there
appears to be no lateral blurring as would ceccur with any reascnable

shutter speed. o
i, Tt is the reporting officer’s private opinion thad aﬁflyiﬁg saucar
sighting would be unlikely at the very barren island of.Trindtde, as
everyone knows Mariians are extremely comfort loving creatures.
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Question regarding the release of information to Ralph Rankow on the Saldahana

photos.
POINTS TO BE CONSIDERED:

(:i;} Rankow. Represents NICAP, and is a photographer, not a photo interpreter.
a) NICAP's position, as per the attached two items taken from"UFO EVIDENCE".
b) Rankow, as a member of NICAP,will use any information presented to him
to discredit the Air Force, if possible.
(j:ﬁ €ongressional inquiry. Will Rankow contact congress}

a) If given the ONI report, only if the information can be considerdd as

detrimental to the Air Force, and in this case probably yes anyway
claiming that the Air Force should not eegard the photos as a hoax (based
on the ONI analysis) without having examined the negatives themselves.

b) Probably yes, if not given the @NI report charging that the Air Force is

witholding information, and try to force the information through congress.
c) No matter what the Air Force does in this case the ONI report will be

used against us, either as a charge of witholding information or as a

charge of incorrect evaluation, (NICAP's position , not the Air Forces)

or rather no evaluation at all, since we accepted the Navy report.

3.) RELEASE OF THE ONL REPORT: . — “Z—¢pi27
g BE s L TS S
a)' UFO information,is not possible without releasing the entire report since
< \ {
any omissions would be hit upon by NICAP as witholding information.

L

b) Entire report contains information which should be released only through
the State Department
c) RAIKKKE Since the report originated with the Navy, the Navy should be
responsible for it's release, however they do not want to "get into the act".
and can claim that it was turmed over to the Air Force for disposition.
_SUGGESTED COURSE OF ACTION:
gg;ce Ré%kow (NTCAP) or someone will eventually use the Saldahana photos as an
issue against the''best interest of the Air Force'" the problem does not resolve
to one of whether Rankow will contact congress or mnot. Giving him the information
(the ONI report) would only delay an inquiry, not prevent it. One possible course
of action would be to let Rankow contact his congressman, then answer the‘congressionaj
inquiry with an explanation of what NICAP is and represents, and include the
e f T, Fomire sl OF
ONI report that Rankow will request. Let the congressman decide whether he should gz
. ; ; Sy X

= ':’,. ’t:""p
rt i

without approval of the State Department knowing its contents. Rankow could then

accuse the congressman of witholding that part of the report not relating to the UFO

or accept his word that all UFO information had been released.



i course, all within a period of about three seconds.
traveled back along its course for about 20 miles,
4 course again and disappeared off the scope at 50
adar reaches out only 50 miles).

tely 5 minutes later 2 more targets appeared
ed off the scope in the same direction as the
o we had time to clock. They traveled 20 miles
ds which {igures out to 3600 mph. A minute or so
surth target appeared in the same area as the other

miles northwest, and went off the scope to the
t at 3600 mph.

radar does not give height of aircraft so I couldn’t
. the height, however they had to be about 10,000 feet
r because our radar’s maximum height range is about

)
reets

er 5, 1957; Gulf of Mexico

.+ 5:00 a.m. the U, S. Coast Guard Cutter Sebago was
wiles south of the Mississippi delta. At 5:10 the bridge
-nly showed an unidentified target at 246 degrees true,
55 range 12,000 yards (almost7 miles). On duty were
wme Schotley, deck officer, Lt. (j.g.) Donald Schaefer,
quartermaster Kenneth Smith, and radioman Tnomas

ced in New Orleans, Ensign Schotley was asked how
dar target was.

. "“The ship's combat information center confirmed
-, At that point it was reported falling astern rapidly.
sod pip [target]. It was a very strong contact, consid-

fames N. Schrader, spokesman in New Orleans, said
. point ‘“in two minutes it went 33 miles straight away
3ip.” (About 1020 mph.)

:ontact was lost.

contact .was regained, object about 22 miles north.
ohject faded off radar secreen, range about 55 miles.
contact regained, object appeared stationary, seven
aorth,
us time, A/1C William J. Mey, an Electronics tech-
xeesier AFB, Mississippi (about 320 miles to the
ue Gulf Coast) spotted an elliptical UFO. In his signed
NICAP, A/1C Mey gives the time as approximately
Looking south, he saw the UFO approach on a norther-
ut about the speed of a propeller airliner, then ac-
ily and disappear into some clouds.

wests that more than one UFO may have been op-
. the area, and that the Sebago’s radar may nave
ore than one of them. A/IC Mey's report is fairly
with the 5:18 radar report of the UFO headed north
J0 mph. If Mey actually saw the UFO at 5:28, it would
red about 1590 mph., from the time it faded from the
radar screen. If he saw it precisely at 5:20 a.m., it
¢ had to accelerate to nearly 8000 mph. to cover the
. that time),

the Sebago regained radar contact, and also saw the
lly for 3-3 seconds as a brilliant white object with no
uble shape. It was at a bearing of 270 degrees true
wition about 31 degrees, moving. horizontaily from
stthe (A navigator obtained the elevation by noting a
~same angle and taking a sextant reading of it), The
y entered a cloudbank and disappeared.

the cutter reported its last radar contact with the
st 175 miles to the north, traveling about 660 mph.
twon XII, November 1957 chronology, for other reports
same period. ]

1961; Missile Base

cerified by WNICAP Director Donald
and Assistant Direcior ilichard Hall, During the
olid fuel missile, radar waolch was supposed to track
e instead tracked a UFO target. Test evaluation
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.and time again.

PHOTOGRAPHS

The pholtographic material listed below has been
evaluated with this principle in mind: A still photograph
purporting to show a UFO is, al wmost, approximalely as
reliable as the person who took it. If the wilness is a
reputable pevson and all pertinenl data is provided, his
photograph deserves careful analysis. Wheve chavacler
information about the witness is lacking, the pholograph
is of less valwe and it is necessary to suspend judgment
about it. Still pliotographs can be faked very easily. In
general, movie films are more valuable because they
are more difficult to fake, and more subject to analysis
independently of the chavacter of the wilness.

| S

NICAP Adviser Ralph Rankow, a professional photographer
in New York City, gave the following estimate of phuiographic
evidence for UFOs:

‘“‘Everyone knows that photographs can be faked, but the real
question is, to what extent can they be faked? We have seen
Hollywood movies of realistic dinosaurs fighting one another.
We have seen dams break and towns washed away by the flood
waters. We have seen naval battles and ships blown up right
before our eyes. In one movie I even saw Moses hold back the
waters of the Red Sea. These were all very realistic scenes, and
we had to keep reminding ourselves that what we were seeing was
a Hollywood movie and not a real event.

If these complicated scenes can be photographed so real-
istically why can’t a simple thing like a UFO be faked? The
answer, of course, is that it can, and what’'s more it has--time
A UFO can be any shape, not just saucer or
cigar shaped. This makes it very easy to fake by anyone, and
furthermore any unintentional mark on a film can be, and some-
times is claimed to be a UFO.

If model airplanes can be photographed to look real, then
so can model UFO’s. This does not mean that there are no air- -
planes, just because we are eacily ableto fake a picture to repre i
sent one. In the saine way, the ability to fake a UFO photograph
in no way implies that these things do not exist.

This is just to point up the extreme difficulty of determining
whether or not a photograph is authentic on just the unsupported
word of one or two witnesses who may or may not be reliable.
In truth, no photograph, no matter how clear it may be, can be
considered evidence of UFO reality without a reliable witness.

Now, this brings us to the question of what makes a reliable
witness? One need not be a famous person whose name we all
know, in order to be termed ‘‘reliable’”’. A man’s credentials
give him reliability, not his vocation. Is he a mature individual
or one given to playing tricks? What is the opinion of him held
by those who know him best? Questions of this nature will help
to determine how responsible and trustworthy an individual we
are dealing with.

It is only when a photograph is vouched for by such a ver-
acious individual that it becomes important as evidence.””

In addition to the question of witness reliability, analysis of
photographic evidence for UFOs is complicated by otner factors.
Many of the potentially most significant pictures were taken before
NICAP was formed .in 1956. Belated attempts to obtain all the
necessary data for full analysis have proved exiremely difficult.
Since then, quite a few of the seemingly better movie films and
photographs were submitited to the Air Force, rather than to
NICAP, by citizens unaware of NICAP’s existence. Secrecy and
red tape thereupon obscured the facts. Insome cases, because of
the confusion surrounding the UFO subject and reports of tamper-
ing with or confiscation of {ilms [Section IX], withesses have re-
fused'to give up their {ilms for analysis.

Because of these problems, we consider itappropriate merel s

to list photographic evidence known to exist. This will supply
references to data which would need to be analyzed thoroughly in
any complete scientific investigation of UFOs. We have also at-
tempted to rate each case,according to its probable significance
as evidence. The codes below indicaié rating, film data, and
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MAJ.-DONALD E, KEYHOE, USMC (RET.), DIRECTOR

IARD OF GOYERNORS

[/.B. Hartranft, Jr.; President, Aircraft Owners & Pilots As-
ociation, Washington, D.C. Former Army Air Corps Lt. Colonel,
ounder of U.S. Air Guard (now Civil Air Patrol), graduate U-u-
grsity of Pennsylvania. ~

. J. Bryan Ill, USAFR (Ret.); Writer and author, Richmond,
irginia. Former special assistant to Secretary of Air Force
1952-53), assigned to staff of Gen. Lauris Norstad, NATO
1959), editorial staff of national magazines, author of several
ooks.

Earl Douglass; Presbyterian clergyman, Princeton, N. J.
eligious Columnist, member of New York Authors League.
1.D., Tusculum College (1931), Litt.D., Catawba College (1941).
Charles P. Olivier; President, American Meteor Society,
arbeth, Pa. Professor emeritus of astronomy, Univ. of Pennsyl-
ania, contributor to Encyclopedia Britannica and Smithsonian
strophysical Observatory reports on meteors.

Marcus Bach; State Urdiversity of lowa, School of Religion.

uthor and playwright,. member American Academy of Political

nd Social Sciences, contributor to scholarly journals and popu-
r magazines, Ph.D. University of lowa (1942).

. Robert Emerson, USAR; Research Chemist, Emerson Testing
aboratory, Baton Rouge, La. Member American Chemical
ociety Speaker’s Bureau, graduate Chemical Wa:fare School
dgewood Arsenal, General Staff College Fort Leavenworch,
her military schools. ’

Frank Edwards; WTTV, Indianapolis, Indiana, radio-television
>mmentator and author.” Recipient of Amvets Service Award
953) and VFW National Service Award (1945), former news
1alyst cn Mutual Broadcasting System.

“ Charles A. Maney; Head, Department of Physics, Defiance
ollege, Ohio. Author of Atoms For Peace proposal now cn filc
i National Archives, M.S. Univ. of Chicago (1915), astrophysics,
iditional graduate work Universities of Michigan and Kentucky.
Dewey Fournet, Jr., former Major USAFR; Baton Rouge, La.
ormer Air Force Headquarters- Monitor of AF Project Blue Book
FO investigation, prepared analyses of UFO data for AF,
aison officer berween Dayton project and Pentagon.

, Albert Baller; German Congregational Church, Clinton, Mass.
uthor of children’s books, graduate Nebraska Wesleyan Uni-
irsity and Boston University School of Theology.

* Adm. H.B. Knowles, USN (Ret.); Eliot, Maine. Veteran of
sth World War [ and World War II, held important submarine com-
ands, graduate U.S. Naval Academy, Annapolis (1917).

{EL OF SPECIAL ADYVISERS
nce & Technolouy

'smes C. Bartlett, Jr., astronomy, Baltimore, Maryland.

forman S. Bean, engincering, Miami, Florida.

Robert C. Beck, Pres., Color Control Company, Hellywood,
lifornia.

Washington, D.C. 20036

MR. RICHARD H. HALL, ACTING DIRECTOR ™

-

Mr. Jeck Brotzman; physics, Naval Research Laboratory, Wash-
ington, D.C.

Dr. Hughk S. Brown, M.D., Spokane, Washingron.

Mr. A.L. Cochran, engineer, Richardson, Texas. .

Dr. Fred C. Fair, professor emeritus of engineering, New York
University.

Dr. Robert L. Hall, sociology & social psychology, program direc-
tor, National Science Foundation, Washington, D.C.

Mr. Frank [lalstead, astronomy, former curator Darling Observatory,
University of Minnesota. L

Dr. Leslie K. Kaeburn, biophysics, University of Southern Cali-
fornia.

Prof. N.N. Kohenowski,
versity of North Dakora,

Mr. Delbert C. Newhouse, former Naval Aviation Photographer,
Coronado, California.

geology and mining cnginccring, Uni-

Mr. Ral&h Rankow, photography, New York City.

“Mr. Frank G. Rawlinson,
Greenbelt, Maryland.

Mr. J.R. Reiss, research engineer, Lakewood, Ohio.

Mr. Kenneth Steinmetz, astronomy, former head of Denver Moon-
watch, Colorado.

Mr. Walter N. Webb, astronomy, Charles Hayden Planetarium,
Boston, Massachusetts,

physics, NASA Space Flight Center,

Aeronautics & Space

Capt. C.S. Chiles, Eastem Airlines pilot, New York City.

Mr. George W. Earley, administrative engineer, major aerospace
tirm, Connecticut.

Mr. Samuel Freeman, past president National Aviation Trades
Assoc., Bedminster, New Jersey.

Mr. Morton Gerla, past director, N.Y. Chapter, American Rocket
Socieiy, Jamaica, New York.

Capt. R.B. McLaughlin, USN, missile expert, Corona, Califomia.

Maj. lohn F. McLeod, USAFR, former Air Force pilot, Civil Air
Patrol, Jacksonville, Florida.

Capt. William B. Nash, Pan American Airways pilot, Frankfurr,
Germany.

Mr. W.R. Peters, former First Officer, Pan American Airways,
Coral Gables, Florida.

Mr. L.D. Sheridan, Jr., former Marine Corps pilot, Ponte Vedra,
Florida.

News & Public Relations

Mr. James C. Beatty, civil defense and Ground Observer Corps,
Santurce, Puerto Rico.

Mr. ¢ Albert M. Chop, NASA public information officer, Space Flight
Ccntcr Houston, Texas.

Mr. Lou Corbin, Chief WFBR News Bureau, Baltimore, Maryland.

Mr. Lee R.. Munsick, news and radio, Morristown, New Jersey.

Mr. Leonard H. Stringfield, public relations, Ground Observer
Corps, Cincinnarti, Ohio.

Mr. George Todt, columnist, Los Angeles Herald Examiner,
California.
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